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IN DEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Bill Robertson, M ayor, 

and tile M embers of the Board of Aldermen 

City of M inden, Louisiana 

WM, PE ARCE JAMIESON, C EA 419911 

MEMBERS 
AMERICAN INSTITU'[[ OF 

CE RTIFI[D PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
SOCIETy or LOUISIANA 

CERTIFtED PUBLfC ACCOUNI ANTS 

W e have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the City of M inden, 
Louisiana, as of and for the year ended Septem ber 30, ]998, as ]isled in the table of conlents. These 

general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City of M inden, Lo uisiana's 

manaE, ernent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purp ose financial statements 

based on our audit. 

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with generally 

accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govern ment 

AuditingS _Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 

th at we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall financial statement presentation. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 

opinion. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, D isclosures about Year 2000 

lssues, lequires disclosure of certain matters regarding the Year 2000 issue. The City of M inden, 

Louisiana, has included such disclosures in Note 22. Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 

2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully determ inable until 

the year 2000 and thereafter. Accordingly, insuffi cient audit evidence exists to support the City of 
M indcn, Louisiana's disclosures with respect to the Year 2000 issue made in Note 22. Further, we do 

not provide assurance that the City of M inden, Louisiana is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the City's 

Year 2000 rem ediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or th at parties with which the City 

of M inden, Louisiana does business will be Year 2000 ready. 



In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determ ined to be 
necessary had we been able to exeanine evidenca~ regarding Year 2000 disclosures, the general-purp ose 

financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

City of M inden, Louisiana, as of September 30, 1998, and the results of its operations and the cash 

flows of its proprietary fund "type for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepled 
accounting principles. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the general purpose financial statements, the City of M inden included the 
M ain Street Program as a blended component unit in its general purpose financial statements. 

In accordance with Government Audiiin~ Standards we have also issued a report dated January 25 

1999 on our consideration of the City of M inden, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting 
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our attdit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial 

statements of the City of M iuden, Louisiana, taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. 

Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govermnents, and Non- 
Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 

genera',l-purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

M inden, Louisiana 

January 25, 1999 
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REPORT ON COM PLIAN CE AN D ON IN TERNAL CON TROL OV ER FIN ANCIAL 

REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS PERFORM ED 

IN ACCORDANCE W ITH GOVERN M EN T AUDITIN G STAN DARDS 

The Itonorable Bill Robertson, M ayor, 

and the M em bers of the Board of Alderm en 

City of M inden, Louisiana 

W e have audited the financial statements of the City of M inden, Louisiana, as of and for the year 

ended September 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated January 25, 1999, which was 

qualified because insufficient audit evidence exists to support the City of M inden, Louisiana's 

disclosures w ith respect to the Year 2000 issue. Except as discussed in the preceding sentence, we 

have conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 

applicable to financial audits contained in Govern m ent Auditing Standards, issued 

Comptroller General of the United States. 

by the 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of M inden, Louisiana's financial 

statements are free of material m isstatement, we perforated tests of its compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct 

and material effect on the determ ination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 

opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that 

are required to be reported under Government Audithzg Standards. 

nternal Control Over Financial Ret)ortine 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of M inden, Louisiana's internal control 
over financial reporting in order to determ ine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 

our opirdon on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over 

financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reportiug would not 

necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material 
weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of 



the intern al control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements 
in am ounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited m ay occur and 

not be detected within a timely period by employees in the norm al course of performing their 

assigned functions. However, we noted other m atters involving the internal control over financial 

reporting that we have reported to management of the City of M inden, Louisiana, in a separate letter 

dated January 25, 1999. 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Legislative Auditor of the State of 

Louisiana, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter 
of public record and its distribution is not lim ited. 

M inden, Louisiana 

January 25, 1999 
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REPORT ON COM PLIANCE W ITH REQUIREM ENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
M AJOR PROGRA M  AND IN TERNAL CONTROL OVER COM PLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE W ITH OM B CIRCULAR A-133 

Tile Honorable Bill Robertson, M ayor, 

and the M embers of the Board of Aldermen 

City of M inden, Louisiana 

Colnpliance 

W e have audited the compliance of the City of M inden, Louisiana, with the types of compliance 

requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Slq)l)lement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the )'ear ended 
September 30, 1998. The City of Minden, Louisiana's major federal programs are identified in the 
sum m ary of auditor's results section of the accom panying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Colnpliaaee with the requirem ents of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its 

major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of M inden, Louisiana's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of M inden, Louisiana's compliance based on our 
audit. 

W e conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the 

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermnent Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States; and OM B Circular A-133, Aud _dits of States Loca 

Governments and Non-Profit Organizations Those standards and OM B Circular A-133 require that 

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 

types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 

major fi~deral program occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
City of M inden, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circum stances. W e believe thai our audit provides a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determ ination on the City of 

M inden, Louisiana's colnpliance with those requirements. 



In our opinion the City of M inden, Louisiana complied, in all m aterial respects, with the 

requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended September 30, 1998. 

ntem al Control Over Com oliance 

The management of the City of M inden, Lo uisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective intern al control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 

grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered tile City 
of M inden, Louisiana's internal control over compliance with requirem ents that could have a direct 

and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our audiling procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to lest and report on inleraal control over 

compliance in accordance w ith OM B Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters 

in the intern al control that m ight be a material weakness. A m aterial weakness is a condilion in 

which the design or operation of one or m ore of the internal control components does not reduce In a 

relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, 

contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audiled may 
occur and not be delected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing 

their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control over compliance and its 

operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This rcport is intended for the information of management and the Legislative Auditor of the State of 

Louisiana, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter 

of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

M inden, Louisiana 

January 25, 1999 
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M ANAGEM ENT LETTER 

"]'he H onorable Bill Robertson, M ayor, 

and the M embers of the Board of Aldermen 

City of M inden, Louisiana 

WM. P[ARCE JAMIESON, CPA. I1991) 

MEMBERS 
AMERICAN ~NS31TU*f~ OF 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
~ CIETY OF LOUtSIAN& 

CERTIFIEO PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN3S 

W e have audited the financial statements of the City of M inden, Louisiana, as of and for the ),ear 

ended Septem ber 30, ] 998, and have issued our report thereon dated January 25, 1999. 

]n connection w ith our audit, we m ade certain observations relative to the records maintained, the 

accou~tling procedures in effect, and the overall administration of the financial affairs of the town. 

As a supplement to the reports, we subm it for your consideration pertaining to the follow ing 

observations which did not meet the criteria of being material to the general purpose financial 

stalenlents. 

lnternal control items considered non-material to general purposejTnancial statements 

Utility billings calculations 

During our audit, we performed tests of controls over the utility billing procedures exercised by the 

City of M inden, Louisiana. During our testwork, we noted that the utility billings for Rate 04 and 

Rate 05 custom ers were not being calculated correctly. Upon further testwork, it was noted that the 

rates input into the computer to calculate utility billings for Rate 04 and 05 customers did not agree 
with the rates approved by Ordinance No. 810, "An Ordinance to Amend the Ordinance 715 and 

Reenact Section 19-19 of Chapter 19 of the Code of Ordinance, City of Minden, Louisiana." 

Also, per a discussion with City officials, Rate 04 customers should have a demand meter reading in 
addition to the regular utility reading. However, it was noted that not all Rate 04 customers had a 
demand meter reading, therefore a demand meter billing was not being calculated for those 

custom ers. 



Per a discussion with City offi cials, the rates were changed to reflect the approved utility billing 

rates. Also, Rate 04 custom ers not being billed for dem and w ill be checked to ensure that a demand 

meter, if required, is installed and the reading is input into the billing system . 

Per the City of M inden, Louisiana's vacation accrual policy, no more than the maximum accruable 

amount for any vacation year can be carried forward. For example, an employee entitled to two (2) 
weeks of vacation per vacation year, cannot carryforward more than two weeks of vacation into the 

following vacation year. However, during our testwork for vacation hours allowed, we noted several 

employees with vacation carryover in excess of the amount allowed. 

BillinKs for services 

The City submits to the Main Street Program (a component unit) quarterly billings for 
reimbursements of salaries and benefits paid by the City on behalf of tbe Program. Duriug our 
testwork, it was noted that billings for the 2"d and 3'd quarters of 1998 were not prepared timely by 

the City . The billings for reimbursements of both quarters were not submitted to the M ain Street 
Program until the end of September of 1998 and payment was not received until December of 1998. 

W e reco mmend that the City take steps to prepare and submit quarterly billings in a timely manner to 

ensure proper recognition of revenue and expenditure for both the City and M ain Street Program. 

Prior audit fiudings have been addressed by the City management unless included in the above 
com ments. Should you have any questions concerning the contents of this letter or if we can be of 

any additional service, please contact us at your co nvenience. 

Very truly yours, 

Jam ieson, W ise & M artin 

January  25, 1999 



Bill Robertson 
Mayor 

520 Broadway. EO. Box 580. Minden, Louisiana 71058 ~ Telephone (318) 377-2144. Fax (318) 371-4200 

Januau~25,1999 

Dr. Daniel G. Kyle, CPA 
Legislative Auditor 
State of l.,ouisiana 
PO Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

Dear Dr. Kyle, 

This letter represents our Corrective Action Plan addressing m atters covered in the m anagem ent letter for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998: 

1. Utility Billings Calculations 

As the management letter states, tile rates have been changed in our utility billings computer to reflect 
the rates approved by Ordinance No. 810, "An Ordinance to Amend the Ordinance 715 and Reenact 
Section 19-19 of Chapter 19 of the Code of Ordinance, City of Minden, Louisiana." In addition, our 
Rate 04 custom ers who cnrrently do not have a demand meter will be reviewed to determine whether a 
demand m eter is required. 

2. Vacation Aecrua 

As discussed with tile audiliug team, activity regarding the accrual of vacation hours will continue to be 
reviewed on a regular basis to prevent vacation carryover in excess of the amount allowed each fiscal 
year. 

3. Billings for services 

As discussed with tile auditing team , steps will be taken to ensure that billings are submitted to file 
M ain Street Program in a timely m anner to ensure the proper recognition of revenue and expenditures 
for both tile City of M inden and its component unit, the M ain Street Program . 

Please accept these responses to the M anagement letter as our Corrective Action Plan for tile fiscal year 
ended September 30, 1998. Responses to future m alters covered ill a management letter will be included in 
the reports in "M anagement's Corrective Action Plan." 

Larry Riffl e 
City Clerk 

Larry J. Riffle 
City Clerk- 7~cosurer 

Fayrine A. Kennon 
Councilwoman- District B 

Robert D. Hudnall 
th~blic Works Director 

Magaline Quarles 
Councilwoman. Di strict C 

Charles M inifield 
City Attorney 

M ichael Roy 
Councilman- District D 

Tbe ron W ~lzer 
Councilman - Di strict A 

Doug Frye 
Councilman - District E 



GEN ERA L PURPOSE FIN AN CIAL STA TEM EN TS 
(COM BINED STATEM ENTS - OVERVIEW ) 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups 

September 30, 1998 

ASSETS 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 

Investm ents 

Receivables - 
Utilities customers 

Loan receivable 

Other 

Accrued interest 
Due fi'om other funds 

Due fi'om other goveramenlal units 

Inventories, at cost 

Restricted assels - 
Cash and interest-bearing bank deposit 

Inve:;tments (net of market adjustment) 
Land 
Buildings 
lmprovemenls other than buildings 

Equipment 
Construction in progress 
Proprietary funds - 

Properly, plant and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Accu~mulated depreciation 
Amounts available for debt service 
Funds to be provided for retirement 
of general long-term debt 

Total assets 

Genera 

$ 3,414,149 

6O7 

24,493 

21,398 

13,826 

2,473,355 

501.542 

631.038 

74,163 

Capital 

Projects 

963,616 2,838,981 

$ 3,474,473 3,680,098 963,616 2,838,981 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents. 



Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Enterprise 

5,250,214 

1,875,840 

6 

36,718 

386.140 

1,72;4,745 

1,257,978 

35,441,493 

343,772 

(19,33,5,564) 

Fiduciary 
Fund Type

. 

Trust 
Agency 

20,120 

Account Groups 
General General 
Fixed Long-term 
Assets Debt 

495,568 

4,004,184 

2,917,328 

2,622,410 

275.648 

963.616 

Totals 

(Memorandum Only 
1998 1997 

14,960,435 

501,542 

1,875,840 
631,038 

613 

74,163 

61,211 

21,398 

399.966 

1,734,745 

1,257,978 

495,568 
4,004,184 

2,917,328 

2,622~10 
275,648 

35,441,493 
343,772 

(19,335,564) 
963,616 

11,881,211 

502,028 

1,746,218 

631,038 

24,969 

74,163 
27,150 

91,213 

369.986 

1,328,157 

1,357,678 

495,568 

3,164,370 

2,691,507 

2~77,672 
110,417 

34,839,862 

369,298 

(18,319,207) 
928,887 

3,550,959 3,550,959 4,074,376 

,
26,991,342 20,120 10,315,138 4,514,575 52,798,343 48,866,561 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups 

September 30, 1998 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Bank overdraft 
Accounts payable 
M unicipal retirement payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 
Payable from restricted assets - 
Revenue bonds 
Accrued interest 
Customers' utilities deposits 
General obligation bonds payable 

Revenue: bonds payable 
Obligations under capital lease 

Total liabilities 

Fund equity: 
Contrib~lted capital 
Investment in general fixed assets 

Retalne6 earnings - 
Reserw.'d for - 
Revenue bond retirement 
Bond depreciation and contingency 
Self-insurance liability 
Electrical system m aintenance 
LCDBG contingency 
Unrealized holding gain on securities 
Unreserved 
Fund balances - 
Unreserved for - 
Designated for debt service 

Designated for capital projects 
Undesignated 
Total ftm d equity 

Governmental Fund Types 

General 

43,780 
66,163 
92,541 
36,718 

Special 

Revenue 

17,797 
1,620 
699 

2,993 
15,137 

285,782 

Debt 

Service 
Capital 

Projects 

846,139 

339,202 324,028 846,139 

3,135,271 

3,135,271 

963,616 
1,992,842 

3,356,070 

3,356,070 963,616 1,992,842 

Total liabilities and fund equity $3,474,473 3,680,098 963,616 2,838,981 

The accompanying notes me an integral part of these financial statements. 



Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Enterprise 

113,080 
653,0411 
11,856 

48,52.8 

135,000 
450 

450,557 

34,4.';4 

1,446,9(;6 

16,970,654 

167,383 
1,815,3210 

324,018 

305,519 

5,961,472 

25,544,376 

Fiduciary 
Fund Type 
Trust 
Agency 

9,356 
10.764 

20.120 

Account Groups 
General General 
Fixed Long-term 

Totals 
M emorandum Only 

Assets Debt 1998 1997 

10,315,138 

10,315,138 

31,386 

4,455,000 

28,189 

4,514,575 

130,877 
1,644,580 

78,718 

175,448 
61,211 
296,546 

135,000 
450 

450,557 
4.455.000 

62.643 

37,733 
872,502 
73,173 

162,829 
27,150 
304,264 

135,000 
3,175 

437,507 
4,955,000 
135,000 

7,491,030 7,143,333 

16,970,654 

10,315,138 

167,383 
1,815,330 
324.018 

305,519 

5,961,472 

963,616 
1,992,842 
6,491,341 

45,307,313 

16,555,106 

8,939,534 

160,509 
1,522,417 

358,586 

305,519 
6,814 

5.398.187 

928,887 
1,827,152 
5,720,517 

41,723,228 

~6,991,342 20,120 10,315,138 4,514,575 52,798,343 48,866,561 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

All Governmental Fund Types 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

REVENUES: 
Taxes - ad valorem 
Taxes - sales 
Licenses - occupationa 
Fees and rentals 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
lntergovernmenta l 
Interest 

Program incom e 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Currenl - 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 

Sanitation and health 
Parks and recreation 
Public works 

Capital outlay 
Debt service - 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Total expenditures 

Exces:~ (deficiency) of revenues over 
expend itures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other sources (uses) 

Excess of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

General 

$ 294.632 

325,687 
336,388 
645,763 
88,647 
753,166 
108,889 

63,243 
2.616.415 

1,091,064 
1,643,380 

732,524 
654,761 
858,107 
676,332 

5.656.168 

Special 
Revenue 

3,331,727 

13,396 
116,888 

6,015 
3,468,026 

152,858 
13,924 

166.782 

(3,039,753) 3,301,244 

3,758,545 

(367,605) 
3,390,940 

34,948 

(2,916,555) 
(2,881,607) 

351,187 419,637 

2.784.084 2,936,433 

Fund balance at end of year $ 3,135,271 3,356,070 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents. 



 

Debt 
Service 

66,001 

27,048 

__
93,049 

500,000 
285,225 
785,225 

Capital 

Projects 

62,993 

6,127 
69,120 

1,252,806 

1,252,806 

Tota ls 

(M emorandum Only 
1998 1997 

360,633 
3,331,727 
325,687 
336,388 
645,763 
88,647 
766,562 
315.818 

75,385 
6,246,610 

1,243,922 
1,657,304 
732,524 
654,761 

858,107 
676,332 

1,252,806 

500,000 
285,225 

7,860,981 

346,773 
3,198,646 
347,396 
303,446 
656,419 
83,130 
247,155 
273,839 
463,437 
64,265 

5,984,506 

1,093,896 
1,557,867 
620,020 
639,195 
316,758 
68,591 

1.880.622 

470,000 
311,840 

6.958.789 

(69_2,176_) (1,183,686) (1,614,371) (974,283) 

726,905 1,349,376 

726,905 1,349,376 

5,869,774 
(3,284,160) 
2,585,614 

5,667,362 
(3,327,830) 
2,339,532 

34,729 165,690 971,243 1,365,249 

928,887 1,827,152 8,476,556 7,111,307 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - General and Special Revenue Fund Types 
For the Year Ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

REVFNUES: 
Taxes - ad valorem 
Taxes - sales 
Licenses - occupational 

Fee'.~ and rentals 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
lntergovernmental 
Interest 
M iscellaneous 
Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
CurrerJt .. 
General government 
Public safety 
H ighways and streets 
Sanitation and health 
Parks ar, d recreation 
Public works 
Capital expenditures 
Totsl expenditures 

Excess ,(deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

OTHER. FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Total other sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balanc:e at end of year 

General Fund 

Budget 

$ 286,357 

315,000 
261,000 
666,000 
63,700 
112,011 
77,780 
22,290 

1.804.138 

1,225,945 
1,980,644 
774,316 
653,417 
891,194 
229,368 

Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

294,632 8,275 

325,687 
336,388 
645,763 
88,647 
753,166 
108,889 
63,243 

~

2,616,415 

1,091,064 
1,643,380 
732,524 
654,761 
858,107 
676,332 

10,687 
75,388 

(20,237) 
24,947 
641,155 

31,109 
40,953 
812,277 

134,881 
337,264 
41,792 

(1,344) 
33,087 

(446,964) 

5,754,884 5,656,168 98,716 

. (3,950,7446_) ~3,039,753) 910,993 

3,758,871 
(383,500) 
3,375~37!. 

3,758,545 
(367,605) 
3,390,940 

(326) 
15,895 
15,569 

(575,375) 351,187 926,562 

2,784,084 2,784,084 

$ 2,208,709 3,135,271 926,562 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 



Special Revenue Funds 

Budget Actua 

2,700,000 3,331,727 

56,050 
6.000 

2.762.050 

119,391 

4,600 
123,991 

116,888 
3,352 

3,451,967 

152,668 

190 
152,858 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

631,727 

60,838 
(2,648) 

689,917 

(33,277) 

4,410 

(28,867) 

2,638.059 3.299,109 661,050 

33,700 

(3,017,L~1D  
(2,983,631_) 

34,948 

{2,916,555) 
(2,881,607) 

1,248 
100,776 
102,024 

(345,572) 417,502 763,074 

2,505,3
_ ~ 8~ 2,505,381 

2,159,809 2,922,883 763,074 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
ENTERPRISE I~XIND - UTILITIES FUND 

Statements of Revan ues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 
Years Ended September 30, 1998 an d 1997 

Operating revenues: 
Electric - regular rates 
Electric - City 
Electric - fuel adjnstmants 
W ater 
Sewerage 
Penalties 
M isc4:llanco us 

Total operating rcvan ues 

Operating expenses: 
Electric depa~nent 
W ater departman t 
Sewer department 
Meter reading department 
W arehouse 
General and administrative 
Total operating expenses 

Opera|i~g income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Grants proceeds 
Gain O,a sale of assets 
Interest'. income 
lnteresl expense and fiscal charges 
Inventory Iransfer to general fund 

Total nonoperathlg revenues and expenses 

Income (loss) before operating transfers 

Operating transfers: 
Trans fers in 
Trans fers out 
Net operating tran sfers 

Net income (loss) 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 

Decrease (increase) in reserves: 
Revenue bond retirement 
Bond depreciation and contingency 
Self-insuran ce liability 
Electrical system maintenan ce 
Total inercase in reserves 

Retained earnings at end of year 

The accompanying notes are an  integral part of these financial statements, 

18 

998 

$ 4,422,560 
586,198 

4,621,755 
912,140 
621,998 
120,431 
140,184 

11 ~425~266 

5,933,868 
973,710 
743,095 
103,026 
107,375 
418~830 

- 
8~279,904 

4,041,675 
597,883 

4,191,549 
834,317 
619,504 
104,155 
141,167 

_  10~5) 0,250 

5,438,319 
794,593 
832,116 
102,76g 
94,256 
331~020 

7,593~072 

3,145,362 2,937,178 

294,755 
(6,423) 
(19,577) 
268,755 

17,537 
6,948 

213,751 
(14,668) 

204~460 

3,414,117 3,141,638 

907,146 

(3,492,76~) 

828,503 

5,398,197 

(6,874) 
(292,912) 
34,568 

727,144 

(3~066~676) 
(2,339,532) 

802,106 

4~09,421 

(670) 
(262,363) 
(50,544) 

237 

_ _~ 65~2/8) - (313,340) 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITIES FUND 

Comparative Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Cash received from customers 

Cash payments for supplies and services 

Caslh payments to employees for serv ice 
Other operating revenues 

N et cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

Grant proceeds FEM A 

Net increase in meter deposits 
Net operating transfers to other funds 

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Acquisition and construction of capltal assets 

Principal paid on revenue bonds and capital lease obligations 

Interest/fees paid on revenue bonds and capital lease obligations 
Proceeds from sales of assets 

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing ~ctivities: 

Interest on interest-bearing deposits 

Increase in investment in UM D - CM O 

Return of principal in UM D - CM O 
Increase (decrease) in bank overdratt 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

1998 1997 

11,187,835 

(6,391~06) 
(930,603) 
140.184 

10,351,373 

(5,654,407) 
(852,492) 
141.167 

4,006,0100 3,985,641 

17,537 

13,050 11,275 

(2,2~  ~ 792,~  
_ ~ 2,~  _~ Q1,763,209) 

(541,651) 
(135,000) 
(9,148) 

(1,158,908) 
(135~90) 
(16,488) 
8.737 

(685,799 ) (1,302,149) 

277,704 

109,937 
77.190 

464,$31 

213,751 

(999,499) 

(I,218,557) 

1,591,730 (298,274) 

5,393,229 5,691,503 

$ 6,984,959 5,393,229 



Reconciliation of operating incom e to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
provi[ded by operating activities: 

Depreeialion 

Cha~ges in assets and liabilities - 

Dec.tease (increase) in accounts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in inventory 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable and withholdings 
Increase in accrued vacation and sick pay 

Increase (decrease) in municipal retirement payable 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Schedule of Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities 

1998 

$ 3,145,362 2,937,178 

1.016.357 999.731 

(97,247) 
(23,777) 
(40,470) 
4,406 
1,379 

$ 4.006.010 

(37,710) 
(16,831) 
108,535 

(3,282) 
__  0,980) 

Daring the year ended September 30, 1998, the City of M inden, Louisiana entered into a capital lease 

agreement with Excel Software Professionals, Inc. to purchase a computer system update, including 

hardware and software. Both an asset and liability were recognized in the amount of $34,454 in the 
proprietat3' fund. 



INTRODUCTION 

CITY OF M FNDEN, LOUISIANA 
N otes to Financial Statem ents 

September 30, 1998 

The City of Minden, Louisiana (the City) was incorporated in 1928, under the provisions of Act No. 226 of 
the 1928 Special Acts of Louisiana Legislature. The City is located in the Parish of W ebster, being in the 
northwest com er of the State of Louisiana. 

Elected officials of the City of M inden are a mayor, five (5) aldermen, and a chief& police who are elected 
every four years. The affairs of the City are conducted and managed by the mayor and board of alderm en

, 

referred to as "The Council." 

Th e City provides a full range of municipal services as authorized by its charter. These include public 

safety (police and fire), street, water, electric, sewerage, Sanitation and health, zoning and general 
adm inistrative services. 

1. Sum m ary of sienificant aecountin~ nolieie 

A . Basis~fd~resen~a~i~n ~Thea~c~ nt~ng andre~ rtingp~l~cies~f~ eC~y c~ f~rm ~ genera~ly accep~ed 

accounting principles as applicable to govem ments. Such accounting and reporting procedures also 

conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the guidelines set forth in the 

B 

Local Governm ental Units 
and to tile industry audit guide, Audits of State and 

Reporting entiLy - As the municipal govem ing authority, for reporting purp oses, the City of M inden is 
considered a separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the 
primary govenunent (municipality), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable, and (c) other organizations for which nature aud significance of their relationship with the 
primary govenunent are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to 
be m isleading or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria for 
determining which component units should be considered part of the City of M inden for financial 
reporting purp oses. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting 

entity is financial accountability. Th e GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining 
financial accountability. This criteria include: 

I. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing goveming body and 

a. The ability of the municipality to impose its will on that organiza tion and/or 

b. The potential for the organiza tion to provide specific finan cial benefits to or impose specific 

financial burdens on the municipality. 



CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
N otes to Financial Statem ents 

September 30, 1998 

2. Organization for which the municipality does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally 
dependent on the municipality. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of the 
organization is not included because of the nature or significance of th e relationship. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City of 

Minden, Louisiana (the primary government) and its component units. The component units included in the 
accornpanying financial statements are blended with the municipality funds. 

Bhm ded Com ponent Units 

Component units that are legally separate from the municipality, but are so intertwined with the 

municipality that riley are, in substance, the same as the nmnicipality are blended component units. For a 

component unit to be blended, the organization's board and the municipality nmst be substantively the 
same, or the organization must provide services entirely or almost entirely to the municipality. The 

following component unit is reported as part of the municipality and blended with the appropriate 
municipality funds: 

M inden Historic Downtown Development District Comm ission - Act No. 379 of the 1990 Regular 

Session enacted R.S. 33:2740.20 to create the M inden Historic Downtown Development District 

Commission. This commission was established to promote the educational, cultural, and economic 

welfare of the public of the City of M inden, Louisiana, by preserv ing and protecting historic structures 
and neighborhoods. The M inden Historic Downtown Development District Commission uses the 

Minden Main Street Project to carry out its functions and purpose. 

The City of M inden, Louisiana, appoints all members of the District Commission. In addition, the City 

provides a major source of the District's funding through levy of a 1.95 mill assessment on the special 
taxing district created within the City of M inden and additional yearly appropriations. The District 

Commission reports its recommendations and activities to the M ayor and City Council of the City of 
M inden, Louisiana The M inden Historic Downtox~  Developm ent District Comm ission is determ ined 

to be fiscally dependent and financially accountable to the City of M inden and therefore is reported as a 

blended component unit of the City of M inden, Louisiana. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, the following entities have been determined not to be a part of the City of 

M inden and are excluded from the accompanying financial statements: 

M inden Housing Authority - The Authority provides housing to certain qualified residents and is 

funded by U. S. Government grants and rental charges. The City is not responsible for finan cing 
deficits nor entitled to surpluses. The City does not significantly influence operational or fiscal matters 
of the Authority. 
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CITY OF M 1N DEN, LOUISIAN A 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

3~inden Ward M arshal - The M inden W ard M arshal is the executive officer of the W ard I Court of 

W ebster Parish. The principal duty of the M arshal is executing the orders and mandates of the Court. 

The M inden W ard M arshal is a separate reportable entity from the City of M inden, Louisiana, because 

the M arshal, an elected official, has the ability to exercise oversight responsibility regarding operations 

aud accountability for fiscal matters. 

City Court - The City Court is the W ard 1 Court of W ebster Parish. The court system handles 

misdemeanors and civil suits of up to $15,000 for W ard L The City Court is a separate reportable 
entity from the City of M inden, Louisiana, because the Judge, an elected official, has the ability to 

exercise oversight responsibility regarding operations and accountability for fiscal matters. 

Fund accounting - The accounts of the City of M inden are organized on the basis of funds and account 
groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are 

accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund 
equity, revenues and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Goverllment resources are allocated to 

and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the 

means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped, in lhe financial 

statements in this report, into three broad fund categories which, in turn, are divided into six "fund 

types," as follows: 

G overnm ental Funds 

Governmental fu nds are used to account for all or most of the City's general activities, including the 
collection and disbursement of specific or legally restricted m onies, the acquisition or construction of 

general fixed assets, and the servicing of general long-term obligations. Govem mental funds include: 

GeneralFund- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for al 

financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 

revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts, or major capital projects) that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. In addition, the General Fund of each blended 

component unit is reported as a special revenue fu nd. 

Debt Service Funds  - Debt Serv ice Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for 

and the payment of, general long-term  debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary 

funds). 



Proprietary Funds 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination 

of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Proprietary fu nds differ from 
governmental funds in that their focus is on income measurement, which, together with the maintenance of 

equiity, is an important financial indicator. Proprietary funds include: 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the City is that the costs 

(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing 
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the City has decided that 
periodic determ ination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for 

capital m aintenance, public policy, m anagem ent control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary fu nds account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on 
behalf of other funds within the City. Fiduciary funds include: 

D 

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for 

individuals, private organizations, other governm ents, and/or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial 

in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. 

Ba.sis of accounting - Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 

recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of acco unting relates to the 

timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

All governmental fu nds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their 
revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available as net current assets. M ost 

revenues are recorded when cash is received. Taxpayer-assessed income, gross receipts, and sales 
taxes are considered "meastu'able" when in the hands of intermediary collecting governments and are 

recognize d as revenue at that time. Federal and state grants are expenditure-driven and revenues are 
reco gnized when the grant expenditures are incurred. 

W ith the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognize d when the related 
fu nd liability is incurred, except that principal and interest on general long-term debt is recognized 
~vben due. 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues are 
recognize d when they are earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 



CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Septem ber 30, 1998 

Bu_ dgd ets and budgetary accounting - The City follows these procedures in establ 
data reflected in these financial statements: 

ishing the budgetary 

a) The City Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the M ayor and the Council no 
later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

b) The public is notified that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At that time, a 
public hearing is called. 

c) A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for 
the hearing. 

d) After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the 

commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

e) Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or function 
to another or involving increases or decreases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding 

or failing to meet amounts estim ated require the approval of the Council. 

f) All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

g) Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts, as originally adoptad, are 
amended from time to time by the Council. Such amendments are not material in relation Io the 

original appropriations. Budget comparisons are not presented for the following special revenue 

funds: 

I. 87 LCDBG Economic Development 

2. Drug Task Force 

3. Housing Rchab 

The 87 LCDBG Economic Development Fund consists of a $750,000 Community Development Block 
Grant by the State of Louisiana Division of Administration. Under the terms of the contract, the funds 

were budgeted as follows: 

Loan to Sportco of M inden, Inc., for acquisition 

of capital equipment, inventory and rehabili- 

tation of building and grounds 

Administration 
$ 720,000 

30,000 

$ 350.000 

The repayment of the loan is for a 10-year period. Interest, at a rate not less than eight and one-half 

percent (8-1/2%) is to be repaid beginning the sixth month after the first drawdown of LCDBG funds 
and is to continue monthly for the next eighteen months. Repayment of principal and interest shall 

begin on the twenty-fifth month after the first drawdown and is to continue monthly for the next 120 
months. The City is obligated to return half of the principal and interest paym ents to the Stale of 
Louisiana and the remaining half is restricted for econom ic development. 



CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

The Drug Task Force Fund was established in August, 1991, to account for the receipt and 

disbursement of funds specifically designated for drug task force activities. By court order, the City's 

police department receives a portion of funds seized during drug arrests. Such funds are to be used 

only for drug law enforcement activities. Due to the difficulty in measuring revenues on an annual 
basis and the imm aterial am ounts involved, the City does not include this fund in its budgetary process. 

The Housing Rehab Fund was established during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1995 to account 

for receipts and disbursements under the Health and Safety Rehabilitation Grant. No activity occurred 
in this fund during the year ended September 30, 1998, therefore this fund was not included in the 

budgetary process. 

F. Encumbrances - The City does not employ encumbrance accounting in the governmental funds. 
M anagement does not believe that the use of encumbrance accounting would serve any significant 

benefit for budgetary purposes. 

G. Cash and cash euuivalents and investm en 

H 

- For purp oses of the statements of cash flows, cash and 
cash equivalents Cash includes amounts in dem and deposits, interest-bearing dem and deposits, an d 

money market accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits, those investments with 

original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the City may deposit funds in demand deposits, 
m oney m arket accounts, or tim e deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national 

banks having their principal offi ces in Louisiana. 

Under state law, the City may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, certificates. In addition, 
the City m ay invest in bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed 

by federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S and 
also collateralized mortgage obligations, which have not been stripped into interest only and principal 

only obligations. These are classified as investments if their original maturities exceed 90 days; 

t~owever, if the original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. 

Investm ents are reported at fair value which is determined using selected bases. Short-term investments 

are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Long-term investments, those with original 

maturities greater than one (I) year, are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, demand deposits, 

and certificates of deposit. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. 

Accounts receivable - The City considers substantially all customers' utility receivables and other 
receivables to be fu lly collectible; accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts is not required. If 

amounts become uncollectible, in the opinion of management, they are charged to operations at that 

time. 



CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

Short-term interfund receivables and oavable - During the course of operations, numerous transactions 

occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These interfund receivables 
and payables are classified as due from other funds or due to other funds on the balance sheet. 

Inventories - Inventory item s are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out m ethod. Inventories in each 

fu nd are generally composed of the following items: 

K 

General Fund - Gasoline and garbage bags 

Enterprise Fund - Electric, water and sewer repair and maintenance items 

Fixed assets - Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are 
capitalized in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, and recorded as expenditures in the 

governm ental fund types when purchased. The City has not capitalized all public domain 

(infrastructure) fixed assets. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated cost if actual 
historical cost is not available. Approximately 40.0 per cent of general fixed assets are valued at 

estimated cost based on the actual historical cost of like items. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary  funds is charged as an expense against 

their operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estim ated useful lives of the assets using the 

straight-line m ethod. 

L. Accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pa~, and other employee benefits - Vacation and sick leave are 

earn ed based on years of serv ice by employees. The only provision for vested benefits is that 

ruunicipal employees, with the exception of employees of the police and fire department who are 

covered by Civil Service requirements, may carry forward no more than sixty (60) days of annual 
leave. All employees do not have the option of foregoing vacation and being paid in lieu thereof. For 

financial reporting purposes, the City's liability for accumulated unpaid vacation benefits that is 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure 

and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts not e~pected to be liquidated 
with expendable available financial resources are reported in the general long-term debt account group. 
No expenditure is reported for these amounts. 

M . Long-term obligations - Long-term obligations expected to be financed from govern mental funds are 

leported in the general long-term debt account group. Expenditures for principal and interest payments 

for long-term obligations are recognized in the governmental fu nds when due. Long-term  obligations 

expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in those funds. 

N. Fund equity - Contributed capital is recorded in the Enterprise Fund for capital grants restricted for the 
acquisition or construction of capital assets. Contributed capital is not amortized based on the 
depreciation recognized on that portion of the assets acquired or constructed from such resources. 
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Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditures or legally segregated 

for a specific future use. 

Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources. 

O. Total columns on combined statements - Total columns on combined statements are captioned 

"M emorandum Only" to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in 

these columns do not present financial position, results of operations, or changes in financial position in 

conform ity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither are such data comparable to a 
consolidation, lnterfund elim inations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

Comparative data - Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying 

financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City's financial position and 

operations. However, comparative data (i.e., presentation of prior year totals by fund type) have not 
been presented in each of the statements since their inclusion would make the statements unduly 
complex and difficult to read. 

2. Peeoneiliation of Snecial Revenue Funds com bined fund balances to Budeet (G AAP Basis/balance 

3'he fund balances at end of year for Special Revenue Funds - Actual, per the Combined Statement of 
Reveuues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governm ental Fund Types, does not agree to 

tile fu nd balances at end of year for Special Revenue Funds - Actual per the Combined Statem ent of 

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - General and 
Special Revenue Fund Types. The difference reflects the exclusion of the 87 LCDBG Economic 

Development Fund, the Drug Task Force Fund, and the Housing Rehab Fund from the Special Revenue 
Funds presented with budget comparisons. Budget comparisons are not presented for these three funds. A 

reconciliation of fund balan ces as shown follows: 

S_ pecial Revenue Funds 

Fund balances at end of year - Combined Statement of Revenues, 

Fxpenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Govern mental 

Eund Types 

Less: Fund balances at end of year - 

87 LCDBG Economic Development 

Drug Task Force Fund 
Housing Rehab Fund 

Amount 

$ 3,356,070 

(419,419) 
(13,767) 

(1) 

Fund balances at end of year - Combined Statement of Revenues 

Expenditures an d Changes in Fund Balan ces - Budget (GAAP Basis) 
and Actual - General an d Special Revenue Fund Types $ ~ 22,8]~ 
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The following individual funds have deficits in unreserved fund balance as of September 30
, 1998 

M ain Street Program Fund 

Capital Improvements - Street 

Total 

Deficit 

Am ount 

$ 1,672 
203,089 

$ 20~ 2~  

Deficit in fund balance incurred in the Capital Improvements - Street fund was due to accrual of capital 

expenditures incurred but not paid before fiscal year ended September 30, 1998. 

Deficit in fund balance incurred in M ain Street Program Fund was due to accrual of salaries and related 
expenses incurred but not paid before the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998. 

At September 30, 1998, the City had cash and cash equivalents with book balances totaling $16,695,180, as 
follows: 

Petty cash funds 

Demand deposits 
Interest-bearing deposits 

Total 

$ 1,030 
54,036 

~ 40,114 

$ Lf~ 95.180_ 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by 
the: fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at 
all limes at Ieast equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of 

the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. At 

September 30, 1998, the City had $16,871,373 in deposits of collected bank balances. These deposits were 
secured from risk by $342,825 of federal deposit insurance and $16,528,548 of pledged securities held by 

the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of 
GASB Statem ent 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial 

bard< to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten days of being notified by the City that the fiscal 
agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 
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Louisiana Revised Statutes and the City's investment policy govern the procedures to be followed and the 
types of allowable securities to be purchased by the municipality. The City of M inden is authorized to 

invest in the following types of investm ents: 

Direct U.S. Treasury obligations, the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the U.S. 

governm ent, 

Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies 

and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S., and 
Collateralized mortgage obligations, which have not been stripped into interest only or principal only 

obligations. 

All securities held at September 30, 1998 are classified as GASB Category  1 

The following is a summary of investments at September 30, 1998 

U.S. Agency & Treasury  Bonds 

Federal Agency N otes & Bonds 

U .S. Agency Collateralized 

/Vltge. Obligations. 

Total securities 

U.S. Treasury M oney Fund 

To'tal investm ents 

Governmental Funds 

Fair Value/ 

Carrying 

Am ount Cost 

$ 325,063 325,063 
62,437 62,437 

387,500 

114,042 

$501.542 

387,500 

114,042 

~ ~42 

Proprietary Funds 

Fair Value/ 

Carrying 

Am ount 

716,087 

173,968 

253,158 

1,143,213 

114,765 

Cost 

715,246 

173.437 

241,427 

1,130,110 

114,765 

The City of M inden's investments are reported at fair value which is determined using selected bases in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 31. Short-term  investments are reported at cost, which approximates 

fail" value. Long-term investments, those with original maturities greater than one (1) year, are valued at the 
lasl: reported sales price at current exchange rates. 

Accounts receivable - utilities custom ers are analyzed periodically and accounts considered to be 

uncollectible are charged off. For the year ended September 30, 1998, $41,376 of accounts receivable were 

ch~xged off. Past due accounts totaled $87,426 at September 30, 1998. 
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The individual customer consumption meters are not all read on the same day & the month. M eters are 

generally read between the first (1) and the twenty-first (21) day of each month. At the end of 
particular m onth, individual customers will have from a week to a total month's consumption that they win 

not be billed for until the following month. It is estimated that at the end of any_  particular month there is, in 

the aggregate, approximately the equivalent of fitteen (15) days' consumption that is unbilled to utility 
cu.,;lom ers. 

Accounts receivable - utilities customers at September 30, 1998, consisted of $1,330,337 in current billed 
receivables and $545,503 of estimated unbilled receivables. 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the valuation of property as of January 1 of each ),ear. 
The City of M inden bills and collects its property taxes using the assessed values determ ined by the tax 

assessor of W ebster Parish. 

The tax levy for 1997 was 8.87 m ills of the assessed property valuation on tax rolls as of January 1, 1998. 

This tax became due on January 1, 1998, and delinquent on February 1, 1998. The tax was dedicated as 

follows: 

General corporate purposes 

Debt service 

7.16 m ills 

1.71 m ills 

For the year ended September 30, 1998, taxes of $346,578 were levied on property with assessed valuations 

totaling $39,073,110. 

Additionally, a tax of 1.95 m ills on properties located within the established M inden Dowa~town 

Development District was approved by voters. Such tax was dedicated for use by the M inden M ain Street 

Program. For the year ended September 30, 1998, taxes of $17,050 were levied on property with assessed 
valuations totaling $8,743,770. 

31 



CITY OF M 1NDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

A. 1% sales and use tax - The City of M inden was authorized to levy and collect a one per cent (1%) sales 
and use tax by a special election held M ay 23, 1967. The revenues derived therefrom were authorized 

to be used for: 

B 

"the purpose of opening, constructing, paving, resurfaeing, improving and/or maintaining streets, 

alleys, sidewalks and bridges; constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, renovating and/or 

maintaining street lighting facilities, water-works, sewers and sewerage disposal works, garbage 

collection and waste disposal facilities, police departm ent stations and equipment, public buildings 

and/or fire department stations and equipment, including :fire engines, public parks and recreational 
facilities, airp ort facilities, and parking facilities; and purchasing and acquiring the necessary land, 

equipment and furn ishings for the aforesaid public works, building, improvements and facilities, 

and such tax to be subject to funding into bonds by the City in the manner authorized..." 

The Sales Tax resolution provides that any monies remaining in the Sales Tax Fund on the 20th day of 

each month in excess of $5,000 to be retained for operating capital and after making the required 
payments into the Bond Sinking Fund and the Bond Reserve Fund for the current month and for prior 

months during which the required payments have not been made shall be considered as surplus. Such 

surplus may be used by the City for any of the purposes for which the imposition of the tax is 
authorized. 

For the year elided September 30, 1998, Sales Tax operating transfers (of "surplus") to other funds 
which were used for purp oses for which the imposition of the tax was authorized were as follows: 

Transfers to General Fund $,L2~ 05~ 

1% sales and use tax - sewerage improvements - The City of M inden was authorized to levy  and collect 

a one per cent (1%) sales and use tax by a special election held September 29, 1984. The revenues 
derived therefrom were authorize d to be used for: 

"the purp ose of constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, operating and maintaining 

sewers and sewerage disposal facilities...and fund the proceeds of the Tax into bonds to 
be issued in series from time to time far the purpose of constructing, aequirlng and 

improving sewers and sewage disposal faeilities...and the Council shall (i) annually 
budget the amount of said net proceeds of the Tax required to pay principal and interest 

and reserve requirements on all bonds payable from the Tax and the amount required for 
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extending, improving, operating and maintaining sewers and sewage disposal facilities 

and (it) use the excess over said requirements to pay said bonds in full prior to their stated 
maturity and when provisions shall have been made for the payment of all of said bonds 

in full the authority to levy the Tax shall terminale.." 

For the year ended September 30, 1998, Sales tax-sewerage improvements operating transfers to other 

funds which were used for purposes for which the imposition of the tax was authorized were as follows: 

Transfers to Debt Service Fund $__726.905 Transfers to Utility Fund $ ~9_4~59A 

Beginning July, 1992, the City entered into an agreement with the W ebster Parish Centralized Sales Tax 
Collection Agency to collect sales tax. The Agency collects the taxes from vendors, then remits to the 

City, after deducting an administrative fee. The administrative fee was assessed at the following amounts: 

10/01/97 - 09/30/98 

9. Flow of funds, restrictions on use - utilities revenues 

0.980%  

Under the term s of the various bond indentures on outstanding W ater and Electric Revenue Bonds, all 

income and revenues earned or derived from the operation of the utility system are pledged and dedicated to 
the retirement of said bonds, and are to be m aintained and adm inistered in the following order of priority 

and for the following express purposes: 

A. The payment of all reasonable expenses of administration, operations and maintenance of the utility 

system . 

B. Each month, there will be set aside into a fund called the "Bond and Interest Redemption Fund" an 

amount constituting 1/12 of the next maturing installment of principal and 1/6 of the next maturing 

installment of interest on the outstanding bonds. Such transfers shall be fully suffi cient to assure the 
prompt payment of principal and interest installments as they become due, and may be used only for 

such paym ents. 

C There shall also be set aside into a "Bond Reserv e Fund" an amount equal to 20% of the principal and 
interest payments required during the current fiscal year until there shall have been accumulated in the 

Reserve Account an amount equal to the m aximum principal and interest requirements in any one 

m aturity year. 

Such amounts may be used only for the paym ent of maturing bonds and interest coupons for which 
sufficient fu nds are not on deposit in the Bond and Interest Redemption Fund and as to which th ere 

would otherwise be default. 
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D. Funds will also be set aside into a "Depreciation and Conlingency Fund" monthly, a sum equal to five 

per cent (5~,~) of the gross revenues of the system for the preceding month provided that such sum is 
available a~er provision is made for the funds required under paragraphs (A), (B), and (C) above. 
M oney in this fund may be used to care for extensions, additions, improvements, renewals and 
replacements which are necessary to keep the system in operating condition aud for which money is not 

available as a m aintenance and operations expense. M oney in this fund may also be used to pay 

principal or interest on the bands falling due at any time there is not sufficient money for payment in 

the other bond funds. The balan ce in this fund shall never be reduced below a minimum of $15,000. 

E. All of the revenues received in any fiscal year, and not required to be paid into any of th e above noted- 

funds in such fiscal year, shall be regarded as surplus and may be used for any lawful corporate 

purpose. 

Restricted assets were applicable to the following at September 30, 1998 

Bond and Interest Redemption Fund 

Bond Reserve Fund 

Bond Depreciation and Contingency Fund 

Subtotal for Revenue Bonds 

Custom ers' Deposits 

Bank deposit accounts 

Investments (net of market adjustment) 
Self- insurance Reserve 

Total restricted assets 

$ 127,206 
175,628 

811,882 

1,114,7L6 

366,607 

1,257,978 

253 422 

$ 2.992.723 

The following shows the net working capital for the Enterp rise Fund - Utilities Fund at September 30, 1998 

Total current assets 

Total current liabilities 

N et working capital 
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A summ ary of changes in general fixed assets follows: 

Land 

Buildings 

Improvements 

other than 

buildings 

Equipm ent 

Construction 
in progress 

Balance 

October 1, 1997 Additions. Deletions 

$ 495,568 
3,164,370 

2,691,507 
2,477,672 

110Od!~417 

839~814 

225,821 

176,951 

162~231 

(32,213) 

Balance 

S~ ptember 30, 1998 

495,568 

4,004,184 

2,917,328 

2,622,410 

275 6~48 

Totalgene~ l 

fixedassets $~ 3~ 5~3~ ~  3~ 2J~) ~ 3~311~ 3~ 

Depreciation expense has been allocated as follows in the financial statements of the Enterprise FurJd - 
Utilities Fund: 

Electric Departm ent 

W ater Department 

Sewer Departm ent 

General and Adm inisl~ative 

W arehouse 

Total 

$ 450,656 
155,910 

387,890 

17,072 

4,830 

$ 1.016.358 
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The following is a summary of the Enterprise (Utilities) Fund fixed assets at September 30, 1998 

!3escriDtioq 
Electric D,zpartment: 
Diesel 8enelating plant 

Steam turbine generating plant 
Commercial power tle-in 

Electric distribution lines 

W aler Department: 
W ater wells 

W ater tan ks 

W ater trt:atrnent plant and lines 
Equipment 

Sewer Depanlment: 
Sewer system 
W astew~Lter treatment plant 

Other: 
Street li~,hts 

W arehouse 
Office equipment 

Real estate 

Autos, trucks and equipmenl 
Shop an,:l misc. equipment 

Construction in progress 

Totals 

Changes ~'luring year: 
Balance ,~, beginning of year 

Additions: 
ConstrJction in progress 
Autos, trucks and equipment 

W ater tanks 

W ater ~eatm ents plant & lines 
W astewater treatment 

Sewer system 
Offi ce equipment 

W arehouse 
Shop equipment 
Depreciation 

Deletions: 
Construction in progress 
Balances, ~:nd of year 

Life, 

In yeav~ 

33-1/3 

33-1/3 
25 
25 

40 

40 

40 

5 

40 

40 

15 

40 
10 

5 

5-15 

$ 2,463,568 
5,261,510 
2,013,635 
5,288,463 

532,857 
241,065 

4,798,987 
225,353 

7,776,702 

4,788,060 

122,117 

317,260 
206,376 
128,275 

1,175,504 

101,761 

. ~43,772 
$35.285.265 

Accumulated 

l~pr~eiation 

2,412,974 

4,773,240 
1,888,726 

2,124,029 

273,596 
101,029 

2,026,908 
189.019 

2,599,502 
1,438,145 

122,117 
155,977 
162,052 

996,296 
71,954 

50,594 
488,270 
124,909 

3,164,434 

259,261 

140,036 
2,772,079 

36,334 

5,177,200 

3,349,915 

61,283 

44,324 
28,275 

179,208 

29,807 

34~,772 
16.449.7A~ 

$35,209,160 18,3}9,206 16,889,954 

(466.1521 
$35.785.265 

016,358 

440,626 
14,304 
11,989 

122,414 

6,000 
380,817 
34,454 
16,100 
15,553 

(1,016,358) 

(46~152) 

Current Year 

297 

58,112 

80,545 
48,908 

1,705 

3,885 
3,509 
2,482 

219,669 
122,978 

1,119 
8,451 

8,804 
5,894 

L.0a~, ~3~8 
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Substantially all employees of the City of M inden, Louisiana, are members of the following statewide retirement 

systems: M unicipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, M unicipal Police Employees Retirement System of 
Louisiana, or Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer 

defined be nefit pension plans administered by separate boards of trustees. Pertinent information relative to each plan 

follows: 

A. ~[unieinal Em nlovees Retirem ent System of Louisiana 

Plan Description. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets 

and benefit provisions. All regular employees, other than firemen and policemen, of the City of M inden, 
Louisiana, are members of Plan A. The total payroll for employees of th e City covered by the System for 

the year ended September 30, 1998 was $1,725,926; total payroll for the City of M inden, Louisiana, was 
$3.021.751. 

All perm anent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan 

and are paid wholly or in part from municipal funds and all elected municipal officials are eligible to 
participate in the System . Under Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of 

creditable service, at or after age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable serv ice, or at any age with at least 

30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 

percent of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service. Final-average salary is the 

employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average, 
Employees wbo term inate with at least the am ount of creditable serv ice stated above, and do not withdraw 

their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their 
date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or 

amended by slate statute. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 

~upplementary information for the System . That report may be obtained by writing to the M unicipal Employees 

Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Offi ce Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling 

(504) 925-4810. 

Funding Polio'. Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 9.25 percent of the annual 

covered salary and the City of M inden, Louisiana, is required to contribute at an aetuarially determ ined rate. 
For 1998, this rate was 5.75 percent of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also include one- 

fourth of one percent (except Orleans an d East Baton Rouge parishes) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the 
tax rolls of each parish. These lax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the 

~;alaries of the active members of each plan. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of 
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M inden, Louisiana, are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised 

Statute 11:103, the employer eontributinns are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to changes each 
year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City of M inden, Louisiana's 
contributions to the System under Plan A for the years ending September 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996, were 

$99,243, $99,797 and $109,386, respectively, equal to the required contributions for the years then ended. 

B. M unicinal Police Emolovees Retirement System of Louisiana 

C 

Plan D escription. A ll full-tim e police department employees engaged in law enforcem ent are required to 

participate in the System. Employees who retire at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service or 

at or after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable month ly 

for life, equal to 3 1/3 percent of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service. Final-average 

salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest 
average. Em ployees who term inate with at least the am ount of creditable service stated above, and do not 

w ithdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to 

their date of term ination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or 

am ended by state statu te. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 

supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the M unicipal Police 

Employees Retirem ent System of Louisiana, 8401 United Plaza Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809- 

2250, or by calling (504) 929-7411. 

Funding Policy. Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 7.5 percent of their annual covered 

salary and the City of M inden, Louisiana, is required to contribute at an actuarially determ ined rate. The current 
rate is 9.0 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of 
M inden, Louisiana, are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised 

Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determ ined by actuarial valuation and are subject to changes each 
year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City of M inden, Louisiana's contribution 

for the years ended September 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996, were $58,123, $54,853 and $51,658, respectively, 
equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Plan Description. M embership in the Louisiana Firefighters' Retirement System is mandatory for all full-time 

firefighters employed by a municipality, parish, or fire protection district that did not enact an ordinance before 
January 1, 1980, exempting itself from participation in the System Employees are eligible to retire at or after 

age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service or at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable serv ice. 
Upon retirement, members are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 1/3 percent 
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of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service, not to exceed 100 percent of their final-average 

salary. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that 
produce the highest average. Employees who term inate with at least 12 years of service and do not withdraw 

their employee contributions may retire at or after age 55 (or at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of 
creditable service at termination) and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also 
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are establisbed or amended by state statute. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that include financial statements and required 

supplementary information for the System . That report may be obtained by writing to the Firefighters' 

Retirement System, Post Office Box 94095, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804, or by calling (504) 925-4060. 

Funding Policy. Plan m embers are required by state statute to contribute 8.0 percent of their annual covered 

salary and the City of M inden, Louisiana is required to contribute at an aetuarially determined raze. The current 
rate is 9.0 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of 

M inden, Louisiana, are established and may be amended by state statute. As proved by Louisiana Revised 

Slatute I I: 103, the employer contributions are determ ined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each 
year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City of M inden, Louisiana's contributions 
for the years ended September 30, 1998, 1997 and 1996, were $26,431, $21,863 and $25,910, respectively, 
equal to the required contributions for each year. 

13. Com 

At September 30, 1998, employees of the City have accumulated and vested $175,448 of employee leave benefits, 
which was computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60. Of this amount, $92,541 is recorded as 

an obligation of the General Fund, $2,993 is recorded as an obligation of tire Sales Tax Fund, and $31,386 is 

recorded within the general long-term debt account group. The leave liability for the employees of the Enterprise 
Fund, in the amount of $48,528, is accounted for within the fund. 
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14. Long-term debt 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statem ents 

September 30, 1998 

The following is a summary of bond transactions of the City of M inden for the year ended September 30, 1998 

Bonds payable, September 30, 1997 

Bonds retired 

Bonds payable, September 30, 1998 

General 

Obligation 

$4,955,000 

(500,000) 

Revenue 

270,000 

(135,000) 
135~ ooo

_  

Bonds :payable at September 30, 1998, are comprised of the following individual issues: 

Principal 

Outstanding 

Total 

5,225,000 

(635,000) 

Interest 

to 

M aturity 

$6,420,~000 Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, 
Series ST-1992, dated 111192; due in annual 

installments of $195,000 - $705,000 through 
January 1, 2005; interest at 4.4% - 6.3% ; secured 
by a pledge of the City's 1%  sales and use tax 

desi~,nated for sewerage system improvements $ 4,120,000 950,835 

$475,01)0 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 

1991, dated September 26, 1991 ; due in annual 

installments of $5,000 - $55,000 through 
M arch 1, 2005; interest at 4.7% - 6.65% ; secured 

by levy and collection of ad valorem taxes 

Revenue bonds: 

335,000 

$ 4.455.000 

81,591 

1.032.426 

$2,250,000 W ater and Electric Revenue Bonds; Series A 
of 19'74 dated 1/1/74; due in annual installments of 

$85,000 - $135,000 through January 1, 1999; interest 
at 4% - 5.4% $ 135.000 ~ 2,Z0~/ 



CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statem ents 

September 30, 1998 

The annual requirem ents to am ortize all debt outstanding as of September 30, 1998, including interest paym ents of 

$1,035,126, are as follows: 

Year ending 

September 30 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2(102 

2(103 

2004-2005 

General 
Obligation 

Principal 

$ 525,000 
555,000 

600,000 

630,000 

670,000 

1,475,000 

Revenue 

Principal Interest Total 

135,000 

335~ 09~ 

258,560 

224,643 

190,400 

153,333 

113,643 

94,547 

LO3~.JZ~ 

918,560 

779,643 

790,400 

783,333 

783,643 

1,569,547 

&62&12~ 

At September 30, 1998 $963,616 was available in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation 
bonds. 

In accordanee with Louisiana Revised Statutes, the City is legally restricted in the amount of long-term bonded 

debt that may be issued. At September 30, 1998, the statutory limit was $3,907,311, and outstanding bonded 
debt totaled $135.000. 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in 

compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 

41 



15. In n 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 1998, and operating transfers in and out 

for the year then ended were as follows: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 
Sak:s Tax Fund 
Sales Tax Fund - 
Sewerage System 

Main Street Project 
Debt Service Funds - 
P.I.B., Series ST 
ST-1992, 1/1/92 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Capital Improvements - 

Sewer 
Capital Improvements - 

Street 
Capital Improvements - 

W ater 

Enterprise Fund 

Agency Fund 

16. llifer~overnm ental revenue 

lnterfund 

Receivables 

$ 24A93 

36,718 

lnteffund 
Payables 

36,718 

-61,211 

_Qperatin~ Transf~L 
In Out 

3,758,545 367,605 

726,905 

297,500 

320.102 

,295,059 

3,492,760 

The City periodically receives various grants and entitlements from Federal and State govern mental units. These 
funds are used to finance various activities beneficial to the cornn m nity. Grants norm ally specify what the funds m ay 

be used tbr and are audited annually under the Single Audit Approach as provided by Circular A-133 of the Office of 

M anagement and Budget. 

During the year ended September 30, 1998, the following amount of grants and entitlements are recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements: 

General fund: 

State grants and entitlements 

Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement 
D,'~partm ent of Justice - COPS grant 

U S Department of Transportation and Developm ent - FAA 

$ 216.87=7. 

$ _52.fi_0~ 



CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

al G overnm ent Assistance Fund 

During th e 1981 Special Session, the Louisiana Legislature passed Act 38 providing for the establishment of the 

Local Govem ment Assistance Fund. M onies appropriated pursuant to the Act were distributed to parishes and 

municipalities based on population. M inden's share was $251,052. The Act stipulates that monies are to be spent 
only on capital programs and purposes including "any expenditures for acquiring lands, building, equipment or other 
permanent properties, or for their preservation or development or pernaanent improvem ent", and cannot be used as 

part of the operating budget. All program s m ust be approved by respective state legislative delegates. 

A fund balance of $63,080 was available at September 30, 1998, for future approved capital projects. 

18. Contractual service aereem ent - sanitation service 

On September 1, 1995, the City entered into a five-year agreem ent with W aste M anagem ent of N orthwest Louisiana, 

a private company, to provide sanitation services to the City. These services include residential garbage and 

recyclable item pick-up and th e disposal of such waste, with fees based on the number of pick-ups per week and the 

type of collection (eurbside or backyard). The City then charges a monthly fee for sanitation services to individual 
custom ers on their utilities bills. 

George S. Humphries et al versus City of M inden, et al, arises out of an alleged sexual molestation of a minor by a 

City fireman. At the time of the alleged incident, the fireman was on duty. The City Attorney indicates the City's 
exposure is estimated to be $ 75,000 or greater, if found liable. 

The City of M inden has filed suit against Thom as G. Ray, President/Owner of Sportco of M inden, Inc., for 
repayment of a loan made to Sporlco. The loan was made through a grant agreement with the State of Louisiana. If 

successful, the $720,000 balance paid will be remitted to the State of Lo uisiana to satisfy the outstanding loan 
balance. The City of M inden will not realize a profit from this action. 

There are: several other pending lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City Attorney estimates that the potential 

claims against the City, not covered by insurance resulting from litigation not mentioned above, would not materially 

affect the financial statements of the City. 

Effective April 1, 1998, the City reinstated its general liability coverage. The City will maintain the reserve fund 
established in prior years for self-insuran ce. The reserv e will be used to pay claims for amounts less than the 

deductible allowed under the City's general liability coverage. At September 30, 1998, $324,018 has been reserved 
in the Enterprise Fund-Utilities Fund for if, is purpose. 



CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

The City participates in a number of federally-assisted grant programs, such as the Community Development Block 

Grant. These programs are subject to program compliance audits which could lead to request for reimbursements by 
the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. City management believes that the 
amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from such audits will not be m aterial. 

In connection with the 87 LCDBG Economic Development Grant, the recipient of the loan proceeds, Sportco of 
M inden Inc., is delinquent on repayment of such proceeds. Under the term s of the grant, the stale m ay require 

reimbursement of the outstanding balance by the City. At September 30, 1998 the total outstanding loan balance was 
$631,03'8, of which $379,783 is owed to the City and $251,255 is owed to the State of Louisiana. According to an 
amendm ent to the grant agreem ent, upon default by Sportco of M inden, Inc., the City could be held liable for the 

entire balance of the note, at the option of th e Division of Adm inistrafion of the State of Louisiana. At Septem ber 

30, 1998, that balance was $705,201, including $74,163 in accrued interest. 

On M areh 7, 1994, representatives of the City; the State of Louisiana, Division of Administration; and Sportco, Inc. 

met to come to an agreement regarding Sportco's outstanding note balance, as detailed above. The agreement, 

approved by the Division of Administration, was to grant a one-year extension for the resumption of payments on the 

loan until M arch 1, 1994. Subsequent to this agreem ent, Sportco, 1he., on August 30, 1996, filed a petition for 

bankruptcy under Chapter Eleven. The bankruptcy petition shows an estimated liability to the State of Louisiana in 

the amount of $323,789, and to the City of M inden in the amount of $303,895. 

As previously stated in Note 19, the City has filed suit against Thom as G. Ray in an attempt to obtain paym ent for 

the outstanding balance of the loan. As a result, the State contends that the City has acted "in good faith," with 
respect to the administration of the loan, however, this matter remains unresolved pending the outcome of the 

litigation. The management of the City also contends that they have acted "in good faith" in compliance with the 
grant agreement and will, therefore, not be held liable for the entire balance oftbe note, of which $305,519 has been 

reserved in the retained earn ings section of the Utility Fund. 

21. Chanee in aecountine Drinciole 

For the year ended September 30, 1998, the City of M inden reported investments in accordance with GASB 

Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment 
Pools, which is effective for periods beginning a~er June 15, 1997. As previously stated in Notes l(g) and 5, 
GASB Statement No. 31 established fair value standards for all investm ents held by other governmental external 

investment pools and certain investments held by other governments (both governmental and proprietary.) 
Reporting investm ents in accordan ce with GASB Stutement No. 31, represented a ehange from the prior years 

method used to account for the investm ents of the City of M inden. 



CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 1998 

In prior years, investm ents held by governmental funds were reported at cost. Investments held by proprietary 

funds were reported in accordance with FASB Statement No. 115. This statement required that all debt and 

equity securities with readily determinable fair values be classified into one of three categories based on the type 
of security and management's intent to hold the investment. Investments held in the proprietary fund were 
classified as available-for-sale securities and reported fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from 

earn ings and reported in a separate component of retained earn ings. 

No material cumulative change in beginning retained earn ings was incurred due to this change in accounting 

principle. 

22. Year 2000 issue 

Year 2000 is an issue arising from computers being programmed in prior years to use only two digits (under the 
assumption that the first two digits would always be 19) to identify the year when processing date-sensitive 
information. This method of identifying dates could cause problems when processing information with dates in the 
year 200(I or later. As a result, the systems that use only two digits to identify dates could process data incorrectly or 

stop functioning altogether. The effects of the Year 2000 is expected to extend beyond system s and any equipm ent 

that is dependent on m icrochip technology. 

As stated in Note 1, the City provides a fu ll range of municipal services to its citizens. These include safety, street, 

water, electric, sewerage, sanitation and health, zoning and general administrative services. The effect of the Year 

2000 issue upon the execution of these services which are automated in nature has not been determ ined. In addition, 
the effecl of the Year 2000 issue upon the City's vendors, entities, and utility providers from which it obtains 

services has not been determined. As a result, the effect of any of these entities' non-compliance with the Year 2000 

issue upo:a the City has also not been determ ined. 

For the year ended September 30, 1998, the City of M inden entered into a lease-purchase agreement with Excel 

Software Professionals, Inc., to purchase a computer upgrade. The total project cost for $82,74 I, will be paid 
over a term of 60 months. The computer upgrade includes hardware, software, and training costs for a Year 

2000 eornpliant system 1o be used in the daily financial operations of the City. No significant loss due to 
impairm ent of equipm ent that is not Year 2000 compliant was recognized during the year ended September 30, 

1998. 
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FIN AN CIA L STATEM EN TS OF IN DIVIDUAL FUN D S 
AN D A CCOUN T GROUPS 



GENERAL FUND 

To account fi~r resources traditionally associated with govern ments which are not required to be accounted for in 
another fund, 



ASSETS 

CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIANA 
GENERA L FUN D 

Com parative l~alanee Sheets 

September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Cash 
Interest bearing deposits 

Accounts receivable - other 
Due from other funds - 
Agency fund 

M ain Street 
Due from other govern mental units 

Gasoline inventory 
Garbage bag inventory 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALAN CE 

Liabilities: 
Accou:nts payable 

Payrol;[ insurance witbholdings 
M unicipal employee retirement payable 
M unicipal police retirement payable 
M unicipal fire fighter retirement payable 
Accrued compensated absences 

D ue to ofner funds - 
Utilities fund 
Total liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Unreserved - 
Undeslgnated 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

1998 1997 

$ 1,555 
3,412,594 

607 

9,356 
15,137 
21,398 
8,742 
5.084 

1,811 

2,957,'/42 

1.197 

7,152 

58,838 

6,158 
1.465 

$ 142,823 
957 

52,835 

9,090 

4,238 
92,541 

36,718 

_  
339,202 

3,135,271 

3,135,271 

100,364 

331 

49,116 

9,023 

3,882 
67,565 

19,998 

250,279 

2,784,084 

2,784,084 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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CITY OF M 1N DEN, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUN D 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 

For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 
W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Revenut~s: 
Taxes - ad valorem 
Licenses - occupational 
Fees and rentals - 
Cablevision franchise fee 
Arkla Gas franchise fee 
Bell South franchise fee 
Permits and fees 
Recreational department fees 
Airport hangar rental and fees 
Civic (;enter rental 
Comm unity House rental 
Forestry Building rental 
Charges for services - sanitation charges 
Fines and forfeitures 
Intergovem mental - 
Departm ent of Justice - COPS grant 
Loui~iaua tobacco allocations 
Slate fire insurance tax 
FAA - Aviation gran t 
Other state and parish grants 
Louisiana maintenance agreement 
M inden Housing Authority (payment 
in lieu of tax es) 

Other 
M ain Street revenue 
Interes~ 
M iscellan eous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current- 
General Govern ment- 
Adm inistrative 
Inspection and Engineering 
Civic Center 
City Court 

1998 

Budget 

$ 286,357 
315,000 

34,500 
60,000 
55,000 
44,400 
10,600 
35,200 
9,500 
7,800 
4,000 

666,000 
63,700 

65,000 
27,000 

9,611 

7,700 
2,700 

77,780 
22,290 

1.804.138 

870,772 
80,591 
213,731 
29,905 

Actual 

294,632 
325,687 

45,812 
62,805 
84,671 
61,925 
15,222 
35,601 
12,159 
8,590 
9,603 

645,763 
88.647 

52,500 
66,594 
23,670 
351,264 
230,559 
9,611 

7,742 
11,226 

108,889 
63,243 

2.616.415 

748,015 
67,245 
211,785 
35,074 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these finan cial statements. 
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Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable_) 

8,275 
10,687 

11,312 
2,805 
29,671 
17,525 
4,622 

401 
2,659 
790 

5,603 

(20,23D 
24,947 

52,500 
1,594 

0,330) 
351,264 
230,559 

42 
8,526 

31,109 
40,953 
812,277 

122,757 
13,346 
1,946 
(5,169) 

1997 
Actua 

283,191 
347,396 

43,036 
64,214 
68,825 
45,852 

12)53 
42,730 
11,553 
6,720 
7,563 

656,419 
83.130 

82,500 
66,594 
22,844 

38,387 
9.611 

7,742 
5,242 
5,000 
89,812 
56,482 

2,057,796 

736,032 
50,081 
158,124 
29,988 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Expenditures (continued): 
W ard M arshal 
Publiic Safety- 
Police 
Fire 

Current- 
Highway and streets 
Sanitation an d health- 
Sanitation 
Anil'nal sheller 
Parks arid recreation 
Public works 
Tota l expenditures 

1998 

Budge~ 

$ 30.946 

1,208,740 
771,904 

774,316 

604,033 
49,384 
891,194 
229,368 

Actual 

28,945 

1,101,054 
542,326 

732,524 

605,264 
49,497 
858,107 
676,332 

5.754.884 5.656.168 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (3,950,74~  3~ _,039,753) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Sales Tax Fund 
Utilities Fund 
PIB - i 2/1175 
Operating transfers out 
Capital Improvement - Street 
M ain Street Program 
Gasoline inventory transfer - UF 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

1,295,059 
2,463,812 

(350,000) 
(33,500) 

3.375.371 

1,295,059 
2,463,486 

(320,102) 
(34,948) 
(12,555) 

3,390.940 

Varian ce  
Favorable 

U(~ vorable) 

2,001 

107,686 
229,578 

41,792 

(1,231) 
(113) 

33,087 

_ _ _ (446,964) 
98.716 

910.993 

(326) 

29,898 

(I,448) 
(12,555) 
15,569 

1997 
Actual 

29,139 

121,828 
512,798 

798.757 

594,838 
45,979 
459,278 
68,996 

4.605.838 

(2,548,042) 

1,241,626 
2,326,376 

13.040 

(380,000) 
(33,783) 
(16,363) 

3.150.896 

Excess (deJiciency) of revenues and 
other sources over expenditures 

and other uses (575,375) 351,187 926,562 602,854 

Fund Balance at beginning of year 2,784,084 2,784,084 2,181,23o 

Fund Balan ce at end of year $ 2,208,709 3,135,271 926,562 2,784,084 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finan cial statements. 
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CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
GENERA L FUND 

Statement of Expenditures by Departments Compared to Budget (GAAP Basis) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

General Governm ent: 

Administrative - 
Salaries 
Insurance 
PayJroll taxes 
Retirem ent expense 
Building maintenance and supplies 
Advertising and legal printing 
Office supplies 
Telephone expense 
Cmrtputer services 
Travel and conventions 
Auditing and legal fees 
Profi.'ssional fees 
Postage 
Car allowances 
City utilities 
M aintenance agreem ents 
Civic appropriations 
Reeo:rding fees 
Other expenditures 
Capital expenditures 
Capital leases: 
Principal 
Interest 
Total administrative 

Inspection and Engineering - 
Salaries 
Insurance 
Payroll tax es 
Retirement expense 
Professional fees 
Computer services 
Supplies 
Vehicle expense 
Other expenditures 
Capital expenditures 
Total inspection an d engineering 

1998 

Budget 

$ 275,884 
66,934 

2,941 
17,633 
11,500 
3,000 
10,850 
8,554 

6,050 

8,500 
47.950 

6,000 
11,400 

337,300 
3,000 
28,000 

200 
9,076 
16,000 

Actual 

275,141 

64,746 
2,664 
16,403 
9,453 
7,636 
6,209 
9,945 
6,764 

3,429 
20.193 

2,760 
10,200 

256,591 
2,010 
32,297 

898 
14,522 
6,154 

Variance 
Favorable 

~Unfavorable) 

743 
2,188 

277 
1,230 
2,047 

(4,636) 
4,641 

(1,391) 
(714) 
5,071 
27,757 

3,240 
1,200 
80,709 
990 

(4,297) 
(698) 

(5,446) 
9,846 

870,772 748,015 122,757 

38,700 
4,737 
1,206 
1,625 
10.000 

1,125 
1,250 

21,598 
350 

80,591 

37,984 
3,697 
1,062 
1,648 
2,400 
280 

1,502 
930 

12,233 
5,509 
67,245 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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716 
1,040 
144 

(23) 
7,600 

(280) 
(377) 
320 

9,365 
(5,159) 
13.346 

1997 
Aclua 

265,665 
57,201 

2,658 
16,649 
18,013 
4,025 
1],248 
8,771 

2,987 
5,559 
49,515 

2,384 
4,724 

10,200 
225,690 
2,537 
32,253 

598 

11,833 
2,581 

908 
33 

736.032 

36,288 
3,942 
1,067 
1,693 

701 
509 

5,881 

50,081 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

Statement of Expenditures by Departments Compared to Budget (GAAP Basis) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

General Government (continued) 
Civic Center - 
Salaries 
Insurance 
Payroll taxes 
Relirement expense 
Supplies 

M aintenance and repairs 
Car allowance 
Other expenditures 
Capital expenditures 
Total civic center 

City Court - 
Salaries 
Insurance  

Retirement expense 
Other expenditures 
Capital expenditures 

Total city court 

W ard M arshal - 
Salaries 
Insurance 
Retirem ent expense 
Telephone expense 
Car allowance 
Uniibrm s 
Other expenditures 
Capital expenditures 
Total ward m arshal 

1998 

Budget 

71,230 
21,214 

621 
4,076 
17,300 

500 
600 

7,040 
91.150 
213.731 

26,320 
235 

2,155 
282 
913 

29.905 

20,850 
4,368 
1,109 
928 
480 
400 

2,445 
366 

Actual 

69,930 
12,564 

578 
4,010 
8,686 
1,476 
600 

4,325 
09.616 
211.785 

32,641 

182 
1,560 
400 
291 

35.074 

20,850 

3,341 
960 
933 
480 
250 

2,004 
127 

Variance 

Favorable 
(.U~ vor able) 

1,300 
8,650 

43 
66 

8,614 

(976) 

2,715 

(18,466) 
1,946 

(6,321) 
53 
595 

0 18) 
622 

1997 
AOual 

68,684 
20,049 

568 
4,153 

10,099 
460 
600 

4,263 
49,248 
158.124 

26,320 
193 

2,878 
282 
315 

(5,169) 29,988 

1,027 
149 

(5) 

150 
441 
239 

30,946 28,945 2,001 

20,850 
2,680 
784 

1,005 
480 
468 

2,746 
126 

29.139 

Total general govern ment $ 1,225,945 1,091,064 134,881 1,003,364 

The accompanying notes are an  integral part of these finan cial statements. 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUN D 

Statement of Expenditures by Departments Compared to Budget (GAAP Basis) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Public safely: 
Poli~~e Department - 
Salaries 
Vehicle experlse 
Insurance 
Retirem ent expense 
Jail expense 
Telephone 
Supplies and uniforms 
Travel and conventions 

Car allowance 
M ai[ntenance agreements 
Advertising and printing 

Coroner 
Legal 
Payroll taxes 
Other expenditures 
Capital expenditures 
Total police departm ent 

Fire departm ent - 
Salaries 
Insurance 
Retirem ent expense 
Telephone 
Truck expense 
Rescue squad 
Supplies and repairs 

Unifbnns 
M aintenance agreements 
City utilities 
Other expenditures 
Capital expend;,tures 
Total fire department 

1998 

Budset 

$ 751,003 
50,500 
159,000 
62,300 
13,500 
3,399 
23,115 
3,250 
1,800 
2,500 
250 

32,000 
35,000 
13,223 
9,900 
48,000 

1,208,740 

385,255 
73,863 

29,547 
5,486 
14,850 
1,200 
8,605 
2,000 
750 

8,000 
6,848 

235,500 
771,904 

Actua 

690,868 
59,323 
141,671 
58,852 

7,590 

2210 
24,709 
2,371 
1,800 
5,277 

22,709 

13,051 
12,037 
58,586 

. 
1,101,054 

389,709 
74,603 
26,613 
7,855 
9,026 
1,300 
5,153 
228 

1,771 

6,285 
4,593 
15,190 
542,326 

Variance 
Favorable 
(Unfayorable) 

60,135 

(8,823) 
17,329 
3,448 
5,910 
1,189 

(1,594) 
879 

(2,777) 
250 

9,291 
35,000 

172 

(2,137) 
(10,586_) 
107.686 

(4,454) 
(740) 
2,934 

(2,369) 
5,824 

(100) 
3,452 
1,772 

(1,021) 
1,715 
2,255 

220,310 
229,578 

1997 
Actua 

687,167 
61,437 
136,964 
55,650 
9,601 
7,240 
24,785 
3,801 
1,800 
1,206 

14,896 
25,000 
12,192 
9,216 
70,873 

1.121.828 

373,477 
70,077 
24,583 
7,597 
3,680 
1,200 
6,384 
529 
527 

5,791 
3,596 
15,357 
512,798 

Total public safety $ 1,980,644 1,643,380 337,264 1,634,626 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finan cial statements. 
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CITY OF M 1N DEN, LOUISIANA 

GENERAL FUND 
Statement of Expenditures by Departments Compared to Budget (GAAP Basis) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 
W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

H ighway and slreets: 

Salaries 

Insurance 
Retirement expense 
Vehicle expense 
M aintenance expense 
Equipment rental 

Supplies 
Repairs 

Telephone 
Other expenditures 
Capital expenditures 

Total highways and streets 

Sanitation and H ealth: 

Sanitation Department- 
Co;atraetual service agreement 
Total sanitation 

Animal Shelter Departm ent - 
Salaries 
Insurance 
Relirem ent expense 
Vehicle expense 
Supplies and animal food 
Velerinary fees and m edicine 
Other expenditures 
Caffital expenditures 
Total anim al shelter 

1998 

Budget
_ __  

$ 343,549 
103,143 

17205 
33,000 
53,000 
15,000 
54,150 
70,800 

909 
14,235 
69,325

. 

$ 604,033 
604.033 

32,952 
2,573 
1,895 
1,350 
2,200 
2,800 
4,614 
1.000 
49,384 

Aetua 

329,403 
87,523 
16,659 
20,929 
33,685 
5,285 
65,981 

46,972 
1,243 
19,993 
lO4,SS

_ L 

732,524 

605 264 
605,264 

34,416 
1,949 
1,778 
1,389 
4,130 
2,166 
2,573 
1,096 
49,497 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable_ _) 

14,146 
15,620 

546 
12,071 
19,315 
9,715 

01,831) 
23,828 

(334) 
(5,758) 
(35,526) 

1997 
Actua 

297,524 

83,935 
16,153 
28,258 
47,570 
10,571 
62,822 
61,407 

931 

10,849 
178,737 

41,792 798,757 

(1,231~  
0,231) 

(I,464) 
624 
117 

(39) 
(1,930) 
634 

2,041 
(96) 
(1.~3_) 

594,838 
594,838 

31,843 
1,792 
1,933 
1,650 
2,780 
2,304 

2,055 
!,622 
45,979 

Total sanitation and health $ 653,417 ~  ~  640,817 

The acx:ompanylng notes are an integral part of these fingaacial statementS, 
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CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUN D 

Statement of Expenditures by Departments Compared to Budget (GAAP Basis) 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Parks and recreation: 
Salar ies 
Insurance 
Retirem ent expense 
Recreation center supplies 
Tractor and truck expense 

Telephone expense 
City utilities 
Other expenditures 
C~pital expenditures 

1998 

Budget__ _  

$ 241,693 
32,935 
9,775 

57,000 
13,000 
3,262 

30,629 
502,900 

Actual 

205,830 
30,366 
6,385 

48,124 
9,445 
3,902 
821 

22,064 
531,170 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

35,863 
2,569 
3,390 
8,876 
3,555 

(640) 
(821) 
8,565 

(28,270) 

1997 
Actual 

189,115 
27,752 
6,693 

43,671 
6,599 
3,105 
1,073 
38,750 
142.520 

Total parks and recreation $ 891,194 858,107 33,087 459,278 

Public works - Airpor! 
Salaries 
Insurance 
Retirement expense 
Airport supplies 
Vehicle expense 
Telephone expense 
Other expenditures 
Capital expend'Ltures 

$ 27,100 
4~00 
1,443 
5,000 
18,800 
657 

7,668 
164,500 

26,639 
5,803 

937 
4,814 

26,329 
709 

8,180 
602~21 

461 

(1,603) 
506 
186 

(7,529) 
(52) 
(512) 

~4~ ,42~) 

23,656 
3,897 
901 

4,333 
28,091 

680 
7,033 
405 

Total public works $ 229,368 676,332  ~  68,996 

Total expenditures $ 5,754,884 5,656,168 98,716 4,605,83~8 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUN DS 

SALES TAX FUN D 

Fund used to account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City's one percent (1%) sales and use tax under the 
provisions of the sales and use tax ordinance effective August 1, 1967. These revenues collected are dedicated for 

the following purposes: 

(a) Opening, constructing, paving, resurfacing, improving and/or maintaining streets, alleys, sidewalks and 
bridges and 

(b) Construcling, acquiring, extending, improving, renovating and/or maintaining street lighting facilities, water- 
works, sewers and sewerage disposal works, garbage collection and waste disposal facilities, police 
department stations and equipment, public buildings and/or fire department stations and equipment, including 

fire engines, public parks and recreational facilities, airp ort facilities, and parking facilities and 

(c) Purchasing and acquiring the necessary land, equipment and furnishings for the aforesaid public works, 
buildings, improvements and facilities, lille to which improvements shall be in the public, or for any one or 
m ore said purp oses, and 

(d) Funding the retirement of Public Improvement Bonds, Series ST-l, dated November l, 1967 and Public 
Improvem ent Bonds, Series ST-2, dated M ay 1, 1969. 

SALES TAX FUN D - SEW ERAGE SYSTEM  

Fund used to account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City's one percent (1%) sales and use lax under the 
provisions of the sales and use tax ordinance effective December 1, 1984. These revenues collected are dedicated 

for the following purposes: 

(a) Constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, operating, and maintaining sewers and sewerage disposal 
facil:ities, and 

(b) Funding the retirement of Public Improvement Refunding Bonds, Series ST-1992, dated 1/1/92. 

87 LCDBG ECONOM IC DEVELOPM ENT FUND 

Fund used 1:o account for resources and expenditures under a Louisiana Community Development Block Grant 
awarded by tile State of Louisiana Department of Urban and Community Affairs. Qualified expenditures under the 
terms of the original grant included funds for the administration of the grant and provision of a loan to Sporteo of 

M inden, Inc. for the location and operation of a boat manufacturing facility in the City of M inden. Half of the 
principal and interest repayments of the loan are restricted to the City of M inden for economic development and the 
remaining half is due to be returned to the State of Louisiana. 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (continued) 

DRUG TASK FORCE FUND 

Fund used to account for receipts and disbursements of monies specifically designated for drug task force activities. 
Receipts are from the police department's portion of seized funds from drug arrests. Under the provisions of a court 
order, the police department receives these funds from the W ebster Parish Police Jury. Disbursements are to be 
made solely for drug law enforcement activities. 

HOUSIN G REHAB FUND 

Fund used to account for receipts and disbursements under the Health and Safety Rehabilitation Grant awarded by 
the Louisiana I-lousing Finance Agency. Grant funds are for the rehabilitation of properties owned and occupied by 
elderly, disabled, and single parent heads of household meeting grant requirements. 

M AIN STREET PROGRAM  FUN D 

Fund used to account for receipts and disbursem ents of m onies collected for the purposes of the M inden Dox~ tow,n 

Development District Commission as carried out through the Minden Main Street Project 



ASSETS 

Cash 

Investments 

Loans receivable 
Accrued interest 

Total assets 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
SPECIA L REV ENU E FUN D S 

Combining Balanee Sheet 
Septem ber 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for September 30, 1997 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Bank overdraft 

Accounts payable 

Payroll withholdings and payables 
Retirement payable 

Accrued compensated absences 

Due to State of Louisiana 
Due to general fund 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 

Unreserved - 
Undesignated 

Total fund balances 

Sales Tax 
Fund 

$1,636,570 
501,542 

Sales Tax 

Fund - 

Sewerage 
System 

809,552 

87 LCDBG 

Economic 
D evelopm ent 

Fund 

631,038 

74.163 

$2,138,112 809,552 705,201 

$ 17,797 
1,592 
28 

699 
2,993 

23.109 

2,115,003 

~ 2,115,003 

809,552 

809,552 

285,782 

285.782 

419.419 

419.419 

Total liabilities and fund balances $2,138,112 809,552 705,201 

The accompanyng notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Drug 

Task Force 
Fund 

13,767 

13,767 

13.767 

13.767 

Housing 
Rehab 

M ain Street 

Program 
Fund 

13,465 

Totals 

1998 1997 

2,473,355 

501,542 

631,038 
74,163 

2,021,066 

502,028 
631,038 
74,163 

13,465 3,680,098 3,228,295 

15.137 

15,137 

(1,672) 
(1,672) 

17,797 
1,592 

28 

699 

2,993 
285,782 
15,137 

324,028 

3,356,070 

3 ,356,070 

1,843 

655 

28 

675 

2,879 
285,782 

291,862 

2,936,433 

2,936,433 

13,465 3,680,098 3,228,295 
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CITY OF M INDEN , LOUISIANA 
SPECIA L REVENUE FUN DS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

Year ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Revenues: 

Taxes - sales 

lntergoveramenla] revenues 

Interest 
M iscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

General government 
Drug law enforcem ent 

Total expenditures 

Sales 
Tax Fund 

Sales Tax 

Fund - 

Sewerage 
System 

1,665,864 1,665,863 

78,741 

1.744.605 

38,147 

1.704.010 

95,345 ]6,347 

95,345 16,347 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 1,649,260 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 

Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

1.687.663 

(1,295,059) (1,621,496) 
(1,295,059) __  (1,621,496) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 354,201 66,167 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balances at end of year 

1.760.802 743,385 

$ 2,115,003 809,552 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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87 LCDGB 
Econom ic Drug Task 

Developm ent Force 

Fund Fund 

419.419 

13,396 

2,663 

16.059 

13,924 

13,924 

2,135 

2,135 

11.632 

419,419 13,76"/ 

M ain Street 
Housing Program 
Rehab Fund 

3.352 

3.352 

41,166 

41.166 

Totals 
1998 1997 

3,331,727 

13,396 
116,888 
6.015 

3.468.026 

152,858 
13.924 

166.782 

3,198,646 

9,235 
93,153 

7.783 

3,308,817 

147,320 
9.471 

156.791 

(37,814) 3,301,244 3,152,026 

34,948 

34.948 

(2,866) 

1.194 

34,948 

(2,916,555) 
(2,881,607) 

234,805 

(2,676,794) 
(2,441,989) 

419,637 710,037 

2,936,433 2,226,396 

(1,672) 3,356,070 2,936,433 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUN DS 
SALES TAX FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

RcvenneM 
Taxes - sales 
Interest 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General governm ent - 

Salaries 
Insurance expense 
Retirement expense 

()ffice and computer supplies 
Collection expense 
Professional fees 

M iscellaneous 
Capital leases - 
Principal 
Interest 
Capital expenditures 
Total expenditures 

1998 

Budget 

$ 1,350,000 
29.000 

1.379.000 

49,029 
3,439 

2,819 
6,500 

6,300 
12,254 

Actual 

1,665,864 
78,741 

1,744,605 

48,835 
4,128 

2,782 

5,187 
16,328 
7,148 
10.747 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

315,864 
49.741 
365.605 

194 

(689) 
37 

1,313 

(16,328) 
(848) 
1,507 

3.600 190 3.410 

83.941 95,345 (11,404) 

1997 
Actual 

1,599,323 
61.146 

1.660.469 

46,582 
2,704 

2,834 
8,312 

14,306 
5,999 
8.323 

124 
4 

4.291 

93.479 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,295,059 1,649,260 354,201 1,566,990 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Operating transfers in - 
P]IB '67 & '69 Sinking 
Operating transfers out - 
General fund 

Total other financing (uses) 

Excess of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses 

(1,295,059) 
(1,295,059) 

(1,295,059) 
(1,295,059) 

354,201 

Fund balance at beginning ofyear 1,760,802 1,760,802 

354,201 

201.022 

_ 0,241,626) 
(1,040,604) 

526,386 

1,234,416 

Fund balance at end of year $ 1,760,802 2,115,003 354,201 1,760,802 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

SALES TAX FUN D - SEW ERAGE SYSTEM  

S~.atement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Com parative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Revenues~ 

Taxes- sales 

lnlerest 

Tntal revenues 

Expenditures: 

General govern m ent - 

Collection expense 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenditures 

1998 

Budget 

$1,350,000 
26,700 

1,376,700 

Actual 

1,665,863 
38,147 

1,704,010 

16,329 
18 

16,347 

Var iance 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

315,863 
11.447 

327,310 

(16,329) 
(18) 

(16,347) 

1997 
Actual 

1,599,323 
31,655 

1,630,978 

14,306 

14,306 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,376,700 1,687,663 310,963 1,616,672 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers out 

Sinking Fund '85 
Utility Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

(735,862) 
(986,410) 

(1,722,272) 

(726,905) 
_  (894,591) 
(1,621,496) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other uses (345,572) 66,167 

Fund balance at beginning of year 743,385 743,385 

Fund balance at end of year 

8,957 
91.819 

100.776 

411,739 

(729,731) 
(705,437) 

(I,435,168) 

181,504 

561,881 

$ 397,813 809,552 411,739 743,385 

The accompan ying notes are an  integral part of these financial statements. 
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CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

M A IN STREET PRO GRA M  FUND 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - 

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Actual AmountS for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Revenues: 
Interest 
M iscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

General govern m ent - 
Salaries 
Insurance expense 
Retirem ent expense 
O ffice and computer supplies 

M iscellaneous 
Capital expenditures 
Total expenditures 

(Deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

O ther financing sources: 
Operating transfers in - 
General Fund 
Total other financing source s 

(Deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures 

Fund balan ce at beginning of year 

1998 

_  
Budget Actual 

Variance 
Favorable 

.~ nfavorable)_ 

$ 350 (350) 
6,000 3,352 (2,648_) 
6,350 3,352 (2,998_) 

23,200 
4,259 

2,320 

1,825 
7,446 
1,000 

40,050 

23,200 

4,827 

1,334 

1,836 
9,969 

(568) 
986 

(11) 
(2,523) 
1,000 

41,166 (I,I16) 

1997 
Adual 

352 
5,613 

5,965 

22,000 

4,221 

1,347 
3,625 

8,115 
227 

39,535 

_  (33,700) (37,814) (4,114_) _~33,570) 

33,700 34,948 1,248 33,783 
33,700 34,948 1,248 33,783 

(2,866) (2,866) 

1,194 1,194 

213 

981 

Fund balance at end of year $ 1,194 (1,672) ~  1,194 

The acx~ompanying notes are an  integral part of these financial statements. 



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUN DING BONDS, 
SERIES 1991,9/26/91 

To accumulate monies for payment of the 1991 $475,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds of the City 
of M inden, which are serial bonds due in annual installments, plus interest, through maturity in 2005. Debt 
service is financed by the levy of a specific ad valorem tax. 

PUBLIC IM PROVEM ENT REFUND BON DS 
SERIES ST-1992, I/1/92 

To accumulate monies for paym ent of the 1992 $6,420,000 Public Improvement Refunding Bonds of the 
City of M inden, which are serial bonds due in annual installments, plus interest, through maturity in 2005 
Debt service is financed from proceeds of the City's 1% sales and use tax designated for improvements to 
the sewerage system . 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
Combining Balance Sheet 

September 30,1998 
W ith Comparative Totals for September 30, 1997 

ASSETS 
Cash an d interest-bearing deposits 

To'tal assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Fund balances - 
Awtilable for debt retirem ent 

General 
Obligation 
Refunding 

Bonds, 9/26/91 
Series 1991 

33.629 

$ 33.629 

33.629 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 33.629 

Public Improvement 
Refu nding Bonds 

Series ST - 1992, 1/1/92 
Sinking 
Fund 

Reserve 
Fund 

Totals 

1998 1997 

445,548 484,439 963,616 928,887 

445,548 484,439 963,616 928,887 

445,548 484.439 963,616 928,887 

445,548 484,439 963,616 928,887 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balan ces 
For the Year Ended September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 1997 

Revenues: 

Taxes - ad valorem 
Inlerest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Principal relirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Total expenditures 

General 

Obligation 
Refunding 

Bonds, 9/26/91 
Series 1991 

66,001 
1.106 

67.107 

Public Improvement 
Refunding Bonds 

Series ST - 1992, 1/1/92 

Sinking 
Fund 

10,026 
10,026 

35,000 465,000 
22,542 262,683 
57,542 727,683 

Reserve 
Fund 

15,916 
15,916 

Totals 

66,001 
27,048 
93.049 

500,000 
285,225 

785,225 

63,582 
30,517 
94,099 

470,000 
311,840 
781,840 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 9,565 

_ L717,657) 15,916 (692,176) . (687,741~ 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in: 
Sales Tax Fund - Sewerage System 

PIB Sinking Fund (11/1/67 & 5/1/69) 
Oparating transfers out: 
Genar al fund 
Sales Tax Fund 
PIB Reserve Fund (l 1/1/67 & 5/1/69) 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures and other uses 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

726,905 

9,565 

24.064 

726,905 

726,905 729,731 
1,484 

726,905 

(13,040) 
(201,022) 
(1,484) 
515,669 

9,248 15,916 34,729 (172,072) 

436,300 468,523 928,887 1,100,959 

Fund balances at end of year $ 33,629 445,548 484,439 963,
_ ._ _ .~616 928,887 

The ac,:ompanying notes are an integral part of th ese statem ents 



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUN DS 

LOCAL GOVERN M ENT ASSISTANCE FUND 

Fund used to account for resources and expenditures under a 1981 State grant of $251,052 to the City of M inden in 
accordance with Legislative Act 38. Qualified expenditures, under the terms of the grant, include specified amounts 
for acquirinjg lands, buildings, equipment or other permanent properties, or for their preservation or development or 
permanent improvement. All programs must be approved by respective state legislative delegates. 

CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS ~ ELECTRIC FUN D 

Fund used 1o account for monies to be used for capital improvements to the City of M inden's electrical system 
Resources are contributed wholly by the City of M inden. 

CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS - SEW ER FUND 

Fund used to account for monies to be used for capital improvements to the City of M inden's sewer system. 
Resources are contributed wholly by the City of M inden. 

CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS - STREET FUND 

Fund used Io account for monies to be used for Street improvements of the City of M inden. Resources are 
contributed wholly by tile City of M inden. 

CAPITAL IM PROVEM ENTS - W ATER FUND 

Fund used 1to account for monies to be used for water improvements of the City of M inden. Resources are 
contributed wholly by the City of M inden. 



ASSETS 

CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIANA 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
Combining Balance Sheet 

September 30, 1998 
W ith Comparative Totals for September 30, 1997 

Local 

Govern ment 

Assistance 
Fund 

Cash and interest-bearing bank deposits $ 63,080 
Grant receivable 

Tota l assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALAN CES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Relainage payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balances: 

Unreserved - designated for 

capital projects 
Total fund balance 

63.080 

63.080 

63.080 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 63.080 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements 

Capital 
Im provem ents 

- Electric 
Fund 

695,926 

695.926 

Capital 

Improvements 
- Sew er 

Fund 

321,273 

81,349 
6,361 

87.710 

695.926 

695.926 

233.563 

233.563 

695,926 321,273 



 

Capital 
Im provem ents 

- S, treet 
Fund 

:;40,405 

.';40.405 

743,494 

743,494 

(2~ ,og_~  
_  (2o3,o8_~  

540.405 

Capital 
Im provem ents 

- W ater 
Fund 

1,218,297 

Totals 
1998 1997 

2,838,981 1,880,999 
23.766 

1,218,297 2,838,981 1,904,765 

14,935 

14.935 

1,203,362 

_  
1,203,362 

839,778 
6,361 

846.139 

1,992,842 

1,992,842 

37,552 
40.061 

77.613 

1.827.152 

1.827.152 

1
.
218,297 2,838,981 1,904,765 
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CITY OF M 1NDEN, LOUISIANA 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Year ended September 30, 1998 
W ith Comparative Amounts for Year Ended September 30, 1997 

R evennes: 

Program income - state agencies 

Inlerest 
M JEscellaneous 

Tota l revenues 

Expenditures: 

Adm inistrative 

Capital expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Local 

Governm ent 
Assistance 

Fund 

2,071 

2.071 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 2,071 

Otllter financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in - 
General fund 

Utility fund 

Operating transfers out - 

Utility fund 

Total other financing sources 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
sources over expenditures 

Fund balances at beginning of year 

Fund balances at end of year 

2,071 

61.009 

Capital 

Im provem ents 
- Electric 

Fund 

22,923 
6.127 

29.050 

29.050 

29,050 

666.876 

695.926 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Capita l 

Improvem ents 
- Sewer 

Fund 

8.111 

333.877 

333.877 

(325,766) 

297,500 

297.500 

(28,266) 

261.829 

233.563 



 

Capital 

Improvem ents 
- Street 

Fund 

10,084 

10.084 

834,512 

834,512 

Capital 

Im provem ents 
- W ater 

Fund 

19,804 

19.804 

84.417 

84.417 

Totals 

1998 1997 

62,993 
6.127 

69.120 

1,252,806 

1,252,806 

463,437 

60,357 

523.794 

30,794 
1,383,526 

1.414.320 

(64,613) (1,183,686) (890,526) 

320,102 

320.102 

731,774 

731.774 

320,102 
1,029,274 

1,349,376 

(504,326) 667,161 165,690 

301,237 536,201 1.827.152 

~ ~ (203,089) 1,203,362 1,992,842 

380,000 

740,300 

(5,344) 
1.114.956 

224,430 

1.602.722 

1.827.152 



ENTERPRISE FUN D 

Utilities Fund - To account for the provision of electric, water and sewer services to residents of the City. AI 
aclivilies necessary to provide such services are accounted for in ~this fund, including, but not lim ited to 
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt serv ice, and billing and collections 



ASSETS 

CITY OF M 1NDEN, LOUISIANA 
ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITIES FUN D 

Comparative Balance Sheets 
September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Correnl Assets: 
Cash and interest-bearing bank deposits 
Acc ounts receivable - utilities customers 
Accounts receivable - other 
Due fi'om the State of Louisiana 

Due fi'om other funds - 
General fund 

Invenlory materials and supplies, at cost (FIFO) 
Total current assets 

Restricted assets: 
Bond reserve account - 

Interest-bearing bank deposits 
Bond and interest redemption account - 
Cash and interest-bearing bank deposits 

Depreciation and contingency account - 

Interest-bearing bank deposits 
Investment (net of market adjustment) 
Customers' deposits: 
Cash and interest-bearing bank deposits 

Investment (net of market adjustment) 
Self-insurancc  reserve acco unt - 
Cash and interest-bearlng bank depo sits 
Total restricted assets 

Property, plant and equipment (at co st) 
Construction in progress 

Less: acc umulated depreciation 

Total as sets 

The acc ornpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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1998 1997 

$ 5,250,214 
1,875,840 

6 

36,718 

386,140 

7,548,918 

175,628 

127.206 

811,882 
1,004,820 

366,607 
253,158 

253,422 
2,992,723 

35,441,493 
343.772 

35,785,265 

(19,335,564) 
16,449,701 

4,065,072 
1,746,218 

6 
32,375 

19,998 

362,363 

6~226,032 

169,857 

128,825 

522,918 
1.014.115 

227,352 

343,563 

279,205 
2,685,835 

34,839,862 
369,298 

35,209,160 

(18,319,207) 
16,889~953 



 

CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIANA 
ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITIES FUN D 

Comparative Balance  Sheets 
September 30, 1998 and 1997 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

Current liabilities (payable from current assets) 
Bank overdraft 

Accounts payable 

Payroll insurance withholdings 
M unicipal retirement payable 

AecnJed vacation pay and sick leave payable 
Obligations under capital leases 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Revenue bonds and notes 
Accraed interest 
Customers' deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Long-'lerm liabilities: 
Revenue bo nds payable 

Total long-term liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Fund equity: 
Contributed capital - 

M unicipality 
Sales tax fund 
Federal and state grants 
General fixed assets 
Capital projects fund 
Total contributed capital 

Retained eam lngs - 

Reserved for revenue bo nd retirement 
Reserved for bond depreciation and co ntingency 

Reserved for self-insurance liability 
Reserved for LCDBG co ntingency 
Unrealized holding gain on securities 
Unreserved 

Total retained earnings 
Total fund equity 

Total liabilities and fund equity 

1998 1997 

113,080 
652,644 

397 

11,856 

48,528 
34.454 

860.959 

135,000 
450 

450.557 
586,007 

1,446,966 

446.966 

9,767,721 
1,439,780 
1,213,549 
337,790 

4~211,814 

16,970,654 

167,383 
1,815,330 

324,018 
305.519 

5,961,472 

8,573,722 

25,544,376 

35,890 
692,733 

778 
10,477 

44,122 

784.000 

135,000 

3,175 
437.507 
575.682 

1.359,682 

135,000 

494.682 

9,767,721 
1,439,780 

1,213,549 
337,790 

3,796,266 

16,555,106 

160,509 
1,522,417 

358,586 
305,519 
6,814 

5,398,187 
7,752,032 

24,307~138 



 

CITY OF MINI)E/'/, LOUISIANA 
ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITIES FUND 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses arid Changes in Retained Earnings 
years Ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Oper~lting revenues: 
Electric - regular rates 
Electric- City 
Electric - fuel adjustments 
W ater 
Sewerage 
Penn]ties 
M isc~:llancous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Electric department 
W ater departm ent 
Sewer department 
M eter reading departm ent 
W arehouse 
General and administrative 
"l'ot~LI operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperatlng rcvennes (expenses): 
Gran ts proceeds 
Gain on sale of assets 
Interest income 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 
Inventory transfer to general fund 

Total nonoperating revenues and expenses 

Income (loss) before operating transfers 

Operating transfers: 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Net operating tran sfers 

Net income (loss) 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 

Decresse (increase) in reserves: 
Revenue bond retirement 
Bond depreeiatlott and contingency 
Self-insurance liability 
Electrical system m aintenance 

Tota~ increase in reserves 

Retained earnings at end of year 

The ~ccompanylng notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

1998 1997 

$ 4,422,560 
586,198 

4,621,755 
912,140 
621~98 
120,431 
140,184 

1
._~1425,266 

5,933,868 
973,710 
743,095 
103,026 
107,375 
418,830 

~ 279,904 

4,041,675 
597,g83 

4,191,549 
834,317 
619,504 
104,155 
141,167 

10,530,250 

5,438,319 
794,593 
832,116 
102,768 
94,256 
33],020 

72593,072 

3,145,362 2,937,178 

294,755 
(6,423) 

__ (19~577) 
268,755 

17,537 
6,948 

213,751 
(14,668) 

--  (19:08) 
2044~5~_60 

.~3414~117 3,141,638 

907,146 

..~ 492,760) 

...~ 585,614) 

828,503 

5,398,187 

(6,874) 
(292,912) 
34,568 

727,144 

(3~06.6 67L6~  

802,106 

4,909,421 

(670) 
(262,363) 
(50,544) 

237 

(265,218) (313,340) 



 

CITY OF M 1N DEN, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUN D - UTILITIES FUN D 

Comparative Schedules of Operating Expenses by Department 

Year Ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Electric D epartm ent: 

Purchase of power 

Plant operations 

Fuel - gas, oil and lubricants 

Salaries 

Retire:m enl expense 

Insur~tnce 

Depreciation 

Distribution repairs 

Planl m aintenance and repairs 

Truck and equipm ent expense 

Chem icals 

Professional services 

Telephone 

Utilities 

Travel and conventions 
M iscellaneous 

Total electric department 

W ater D epartm ent: 

Salaries 

Retirem ent expense 

Insurance 

Electricily consumed 

Depreciation 

W aler plant, wells and tank repairs 

Line and m eter repairs 

Truck and equipm ent expense 

Chemicals 

Supplie.~ and m aterials 

Professional serv ices 
M iscellaneotls 

Total water department 

1998 1997 

$ 4,094,881 
532,404 

202,467 

262,625 

13,048 

100,803 

450,656 

202,904 

14,606 

41,947 

2,280 

921 

8~32 
2,412 

3,282 

$ 5,933,868 

271,176 

14,806 

66,884 

240,975 

155,910 

102,905 

5,455 

33,014 

19,070 

29,892 

18,946 
14~77 

973.710 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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3,515,227 

439,788 

441,161 

264,435 

14,874 

66,818 

459,218 

160,108 

12,693 

34,965 

541 

13,669 

1,020 

8,987 

2,206 
2,609 

$ 5A38,319 

173,675 

10,747 

34,503 

266,673 

141,499 

19,100 

45,044 

20,335 

17~46 
23,789 

26,461 

15~21 
$ 794.593 



 

CITY O'P M INDEN , LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUN D - UTILITIES FUN D 

Comparative Schedules of Operating Expenses by Department 

Year Ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Sewer Department: 

Salaries 

Retirement expense 

Insurance 

Eleclricily consumed 

Plant maintenance 

Depreciation 

Chem icals 

Truck and equipment expense 

Lift station and m aintenance 

Supplies and m aterials 

Professional services 

Telephone 

Line repairs 
M isce]llaneous 

Total sewer departm ent 

General and Administrative Expenses: 

Salaries 

Retirem ent expense 

]nsurancl:; 

Professional services 

Computer services 

Postage 

Telephone 

Bad Debts 

Auditing and legal 

Supplies 

Truck and equipment 

Depreciation 

M aintet~ance agreem ent 

Utilities 
M iscellaneous 

Total general and administrative expense 

$ 

1998 1997 

106,146 

5,676 

27,632 

96,007 

49,648 

387,890 

13,373 

7,913 

5,018 

7,005 

9,726 

1,723 

25.338 

171,323 

9,775 

31,732 

98,693 

54,143 

374,758 

21,135 

17,190 

4,423 

14,570 

5,990 

1,900 

214 

26.270 

743.095 $ 832,116 

39,533 

7,315 

53,037 

57,967 

3,188 

19,018 

9,026 

41,376 

13,407 

5,962 

521 

17,072 

3,756 

16,976 
30~676 

$ 418,830 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements. 
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99,751 

4,323 

34,798 

9,677 

7,290 

20,374 

8,725 

87,211 

12,250 

8,413 

473 

20,586 

2,582 

5,822 
8.745 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
ENTERPRISE FUN D - UTILITIES FUN D 

Comparative Schedules of Operating Expenses by Department 

Year Ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 

M eter Reading Department: 

Salaries 

Retirement expense 

Insurance 

Supplies 

M eter testing 

Vehicle expense 

M achinery and equipment 
M iscellaneous 

Total meter reading department 

W arelhouse: 

Salaries 

Retirement expense 

Insurar lce 

Supplies 

Utilities 

Vehicle expense 

M achinery and equipment 

Com puter expense 

Rea~ properly 

Depreciation 
M iscellaneous 

Total warehouse 

1998 1997 

$ 75,690 
3,770 

11,411 

1,438 

5,193 

3,620 

170 
1,734 

$ 103,026 

$ 75,433 

3,561 

13,812 

887 

5,269 

662 

265 

590 

364 

4,830 
1.702 

73,063 

4,194 

13,864 

1,757 

4,717 

3,755 

110 
1.308 

102,768 

70,245 

3,991 

7,226 

789 

5,133 

1,008 

554 

590 

338 

3,670 
712 

Total operating expenses $ 8,279,904 7,593,072 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

78 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

ENTERPRISE FUND - UTILITIES FLrND 

Comparative Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Cash received from customers 

Cash payments for supplies and services 

Cash payments to employees for serv ice 
Olher operating revenues 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing aetivitles: 

Grant proceeds FEM A 

Net increase in meter deposits 
Net operating transfers to other funds 

Net cash used for noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Principal paid on revenue bonds and capital lease obligations 

lnteres'Vfees paid on revenue bonds and capital lease obligations 
Proceeds from sales of assets 

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities 

Cash flaws from investing activities: 

Interest on interest-bearing deposits 

lncreasq~ in investment in UM D - CM O 

Return of principal in UM D - CM O 

Increase (decrease) in bank overdraft 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

1998 1997 

11,187,835 

(6,391,406) 
(930,603) 
140.184 

4.006.0]0 

10,351,373 

(5,654,407) 
(852,492) 
141.167 

3.985.641 

17,537 

13,050 11,275 

~ 2,20~  (1,792,021) 
(2,193,312) (1,~  

(541,651) 
035,000) 
(9,148) 

(1,158,908) 
(135,490) 
(16,488) 
8.737 

(1~302,149) 

277,704 

109,937 
77.190 

464.831 

213,751 

(999,499) 

(432,809) 

1,591,730 (298,274) 

5,393,229 5~691,503 

$ 6,984,959 5,393,229 



Reconciliation of operating incom e to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjuslments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
provkled by operating activities: 

Depreciation 

Changes in assets and liabilities - 

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in inventory 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and withholdings 
Increase in accrued vacation and sick pay 

increase (decrease) in municipal retirement payable 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Schedule of Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities 

1998 1997 

$ 3,145,362 2,937,178 

1,016,357 999,731 

(97,247) 
(23,777) 
(40,470) 
4,406 
1.379 

(37,7i0) 
(16,831) 
108,535 

(3,282) 
0,980) 

During the year ended September 30, 1998, the City of M inden, Louisiana entered into a capital lease 

agreement with Excel Software Professionals, Inc. to purchase a computer system update, including 

hardware and software. Both an asset and liability were recognized in the amount of $34,454 in the 
proprletory fund. 
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CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
ENTERPRISE FUN D - UTILITIES FUN D 

Schedule of Changes in Assets Restricted for Revenue Bond Debt Service 
Year Ended September 30, 1998 

Bond and 
Interest 

Redemption 
Account 

Reserve 
Account 

Depreciation 
and 

Contingency 
Account Total 

Cash :and interest-bearing bank 
deposits, October 1, 1997 $ 128,825 169,857 522,918 821,600 

Cash :receipts: 
Transfer from operating account 
Interest earn ings 

Total cash available 

Cash disbursements: 
Principal payments 
Interest paym ents 
Paying, agent fees 
Transfer to operating account 

Total disbursements 

139,520 
3,021 

142,541 

135,000 
9,045 
115 

144.160 

5,771 

5,771 

265,930 

23,034 

288,964 

405,450 

31,826 

437,276 

35,000 
9,045 
115 

144.160 

Cash and interest-bearing bank 
deposits, September 30, 1998 $ 127,206 175,628 811,882 1,114,716 

The a,zcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



AGENCY FUN D 

Police Bond Fund - To account for the collection and ultimate disposition of bonds posted by citizens who have 
been issued citations for traffic violations or arrested for crim inal offenses. Bonds posted by the violators are 
held umil their cases are heard in City Court. At that time, the bonds for persons convicted of violations are 
distributed to the General Fund. Ifa person posting the bond is found to be not guilty, the bonds are refunded. 



ASSETS 

Cash 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIANA 

AGENCY FUN D 

POLICE BOND FUN D 

Comparative Balance Sheets 

September 30, 1998 and 1997 

D ue to other governmental units 

Due to general fund 

Total liabilities 

1998 1997 

20.120 

$ 20.120 

10,764 

9.356 

20.120 

25.634 

25.634 

18,482 

7.152 

25.634 

The accom panying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents 



ASSETS 

Cash 

CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIANA 
AGENCY FUN D 

POLICE BOND FUN D 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
Year Ended Septem ber 30, 1998 

Balance 

10/1/97 Additions Deletions 
Balance 

9/30/98 

$ 25,634 175,156 180,670 20,120 

Total assets $ 25,634 175,156 180,670 20,120 

LIA BILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Due to general fund 

$ 18,482 
7,152 

7,534 

9,356 
15,252 
7,152 

10,764 

9,356 

"lota]] liabilities $ 25,634 16,890 22,404 20,120 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUN T GROUP 

To account for fixed assets not used in proprietary fund operations. 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 
Com parative Statem ents of General Fixed A ssets 

Septem ber 30, 1998 and 1997 

G eneral Fixed Assets, at cost: 

Land 
Buildings 

Improvem ents other than buildings 
Equipm ent 
Construction in progress 

Total general fixed assets 

1998 1997 

$ 495,568 
4,004,184 

2,917,328 

2,622,410 
275.648 

$10,315,138 

495,568 
3,164,370 

2,691,507 
2,477,672 
110,417 

8,939,534 

lnvesltm ent in G eneral Fixed Assets: 

Property acquired prior to October 1, 1978" $ 2,971,570 2,971,570 

Property acquired after October 1, 1978, from : 

Capital projects funds - 
State grants 

Local Govern m ent A ssistance Fund 
Louisiana Com m unity Developm ent Block Grant 
Sales Tax Fund 

Federal and state grants 

State revenue sharing funds 
General fund revenues 
Sales tax fund revenues 
Federal revenue sharing fund 
Donations 

Total investm ent in general fixed assets 

53,001 

327,158 

1,388,683 
93,112 
645,117 

43,100 

3,412,781 

547,210 
133,406 
700.000 

53,001 

327,158 

1,388,683 

93,112 

38,680 
43,100 

2,649,878 

540,946 

133,406 
700.000 

*Records reflecting source from which assets were acquired 
were not m aintained prior to October 1, 1978. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents. 



 

CITY OF M IN DEN, LOUISIA NA 

Statement of Changes in Fixed Assets 

Year Ended September 30, 1998 

Land Buildings 

Improvelnents 

Other than 

Buildings 

General fixed assets at beginning of year $ 495,568 3,164,370 2,691,507 

Addiitions: 

General fund revenues 

Special revenue fund revenues 

Federal & state grants 

Total additions 

Total balances and additions 

Deletions: 

General fund 

Total deletions 

General fixed assets at end of year 

243,377 

596,437 

839,814 

215,821 

10.000 

225.821 

495,568 4,004,184 2,917,328 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Equipm ent 

Construction 

in 

Progress Total 

2,477,672 110,417 8,939,534 

170,687 

6,264 

165,231 

176,951 165,231 

795,116 

6,264 

606.437 

1.407.817 

2,654,623 275,648 10,347,351 

322~ _13 
32,213 

32,213 

32,213 
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GENERAL LONG-TERM  DEBT 
ACCOUN T GROUP 

To account for unm atured principal amounts on general long-tenn debt expected to be financed from 
govermne~:~tal type funds. Payments of maturing obligations, including interest, are accounted for in the debt 
service funds. 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

Statement of General Long-Term Debt 

September 30, 1998 

W ith Comparative Totals for September 30, 1997 

General 

Obligation 

Refunding 

Series 1991 

Public 

Im provem ent 

Refunding Bonds 

Series ST-1992, 

01/01/92 

AM OUNTS AVAILABLE AND TO BE PROVID ED 

FOR PAYM ENT O F GENERAL LONG-TERM  DEBT 

Amount available in debt service fund 

for debt retirem ent 33,629 929,987 

Amount to be provided from 

Ad valorem taxes 

1%  sales and use tax - 1985 

Other funds 

Tota l available and to be provided 

GENEIL~L LONG-TERM  DEBT PAYABLE 

Bonds payable 

Obligations under capital leases 

Accrued com pensated absences 

Total general long-term debt payable 

301,371 

3,190,013 

$ 335,000 

$ 335,000 

$ 335,000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

4.120.000 

4,120,000 

4.120.000 



Obligations 

under 

Capital 

Lease 

28.189 

Accrued 

Compensated 

Absences 

31,386 

~ ~~ __ _
28 189 31,386 

28,189 

28.189 

Totals 

1998 1997 

963,616 928,887 

301,371 

3,190,013 

59.575 

345,936 

3,680,177 

48,263 

4.514.575 5.003.263 

4,455,000 4,955,000 

28,189 

31,386 31,386 48,263 

4.514.575 5.003.263 



OTttER SU PPLEM EN TARY IN FORM ATION 



 

CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

Combined Schedule of Bonds Payable 
September 30, 1998 

General obligation bonds 

Interest 

Rem aining Paym ent 

rates dates 

Final 
Issue m aturity 
dates dates 

1991 Series Refunding (Sewerage 
Facilities) 6.10-6.65% 3/1 09/26/91 03/01/05 

1992 Series ST-1992 Refunding 5.70-6.30% 1/1; 7/1 01/01/92 01/01/05 

Total general obligation bonds 

Revenue bonds 

1974 (W ater and Electric) 5.30% 1/1; 7/1 01/01/74 01/01/99 



 

Bond 

denom inations 

5,000 

5.000 

Remaining 
range of 

principal 
instalhnents Authorized Issued Retired Outstanding 

40,00010 55,000 $ 475,000 475,000 140,000 335,000 

465,000 to 705,000 6,420,000 6,420,000 2,300,000 4.120.000 

$ 6,895,000 6,895,000 2,440,000 4,455,000 

5,000 135,000 $ 2,250,000 2,250,000 2,115,000 135,000 
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CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Septem ber 30, 1998 

Sum m arv of A uditors' R esults 

W e have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of M inden, Louisiana as of and for 

the year ended September 30,1998. As a result of our audit, we have issued a qualified opinion o11 the 

general purpose financial statem ents because insufficient audit evidence existed to support the City of 

M inden, Louisiana's disclosures with respect to the Year 2000 issue. W e have issued an unqualified 

opinion on the compliance requirements as described in the U .S. Office of M anagement and Budget 

(OM13;) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to the City's major program. The 
dollar threshold of $300,000 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs. 

For the year ended September 30, 1998, the City of M inden, Louisiana had one major program: Airport 

hnprovemeut Program (ALP) grants from the U.S. Department of Transportation - Federal Aviation 
Adm inistration. 

Findi:al~s related to financial statem ents w hich are required to be renorted in accordance w ith 

The results of our auditing procedures of/he general purpose financial statements as of and for the year 

ended September 30, 1998, of the City of M inden, Louisiana, disclosed no items that are required to be 

reported in accordance w ith GAGAS. 

Findings and Questioned cosfs rclaled to federal aw ards 

The results of our auditing procedures of the general purpose financial statements as of and for the year 

ended September 30, 1998, of the City of M inden, Louisiana, disclosed no items that are required to be 

reporled in accordance w ith OM B Circular A~ 133. 
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CITY OF M 1N DEN , LOUISIANA 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

September 30, 1998 

Findings related 1o financial statem ents w hich are reuuircd to be renorted in accordance w ith 

G AG A S 

As stalled in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, in connection with tile audit of the general 

purpose of financial statem ents as of and for the year ended September 30, 1998, of the City of M inden 

Louisiana, there were no items required to be reported in accordance with GAGAS. 

Findines and ouestioned costs related to federal aw ards 

As stated in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, in connection with the audit of die genera 
purpose financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 1998, of the City of M  inden, 

Louisiana, there were no item s required to be reported in accordance w ith OM B Circular A-133. 
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CITY OF M INDEN, LOUISIANA 

SUM M ARY OF SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

September 30, 1998 

Per the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended September 30, 1997, the prior 
5,ear audit finding was as follows: 

97-1: Failure to m eet requirement per Louisiana R.S. 38:2212 to advertise and request bids for tile 

purchase of water meters, the cost of which exceeded the contract limit prescribed by tile previously 

mentio:ned statute. 

Current Status: In perform ing the audit of the general purpose financial statements as of and for the 

year ended September 30, 1998, we noted no instances of noncompliance concerning bid law 

requirements. 
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